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PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES. INC.

Km, 9 Mational Road, Tunasan, Muntinfupa City 17732 Philippines
Tel. Mo.: (632) B50-7901 Pax No.: (632) 850-7928
Webslite : www. pepsiphiltppines.com

NOTICE OF ANNUAL STOCKHOLDERS® MEETING
TO ALL STOCKHOLDERS:

NDTICE. IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting of PEPSI-COLA
PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC., wilt be held on:

Date 21 Qctober 2009 (Wednesday)
Time 2:00 p.m.
Venue ; The Palms Country Club

. Alabang, Muntinlupa City

The agenda of the meeting will be as follows:

1. Call to Order

2. Certification of Notice and of Quorum

3. Approval of the Minutes of the Previous Annual Stockholders’ Meeting held on 28
October 2008

4, President’s Report for Fiscal Year ending 30 June 2009

5. Approval of Audited Financial Staternents for Fiscal Year ending 30 June 2000 )

6. Ratjiication of Acts of the Board of Directors and Management for the periéd ll July 2008
12 30 June 2009

7. Election of Directors

8. Appointment of External Auditors

9. Adjournment

The Board of Directors has fixed the close of business on 30 September 2009 as the record date
for the determination of stockholders entitled to notice of and (0 vote at the Annual Stockholders’
Meeting.

-

For your convenience in registering your attendance, please bring any form of identification, such
as passport or driver’s license, as well as proof of your stockholdings. ‘

Y flreni
MA. KOSARIO C.Z.NAVA

Corporate Secretary

30 September 2009, Makati City.
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION g

SEC FORM 20-1IS ‘ i

INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTIC(N
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE ™

Check the appropriate box:

[ 1¥Preliminary Information Statement

[ x ] Definitive Information Statement

Name of Registrant as specified in its charter:

PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC.

Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization: Philippines
SEC Identification Number: 0000160963

BIR. Tax Identification Code: €00-168-541

Address of prineipal office: Postal Code:

Km. 29 Naticnal Road, Tunasan, Muntintupa City 1773
Registrant’s telephone number, including area code:  (632) 850-7901 to 20

Date, time and place of the meeting of security holders: 21 October 20609, 2:00 p.m., Thé
Palms Country Club, Alabang, Muntinlupa City

Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to security
holders: 30 September 2009 -

Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code or Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA
(information on number of shares and amount of debt is applicable only to corporate registrants):

Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common Stock |
Outstanding or Amount of Debt
Outstanding
Commonr Shares of Stock 3,693,772,279
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Are any or all of registrant's securities listed in a Stock Exchange?

Yes X No

If yes, disclose the name of such Stock Exchange and the class of securities listed therein:

Philippine Stock Exchange - Common Shares of Stock

WE ARE NOT ASKING YOU FOR A PROXY
AND YOU ARE REQUESTED NOT TO SEND US A PROXY.



A, GENERAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Date, time and place of meeting of security holders.

The Annual Stockholders” Meeting of Pepsi-Cola Products Philippines, Inc. (the “Corporation™) will be
held on Wednesday, 21 October 2009, 2:00 p.m., at The Palms Country Club, Alabang, Muntintupa City,

Notices of the meeting and copies of this Information Statement will be first sent or given to the
stockholders of record of the Corporation on or about 30 September 2009. Replies and queries must be
sent to the following address:

MR. PARTHA CHAKRABARTI
Corporate Information Qfficer
Pepsi-Cola Products Fhilippines, Inc.
Km. 29 National Road, Tunasan,
Muntinlupa City 1773 Philippines

Item 2. Dissenters' Right of Appraisal

The matters to be acted upon at this Annual Stockholders’ Meeting are not matters with respect to which
a dissemting stockholder may exercise his appraisa} right under Section 81 of the Corporation Code.

Under Section 81 of the Corporation Code, the following arc the instances when a stockholder may
exercise his appraisal right: ' .

1. In case any amendment to the articles of incorporation has the effect of changing or
restricting the rights of any stockholder or class of shares, or of authorizing preferences in
any respect superior to those of outstanding shares of any class, or of extending or Shortening
the term of corporate existence;

2. In case of sale, lease, exchange, transfer, mortgage, pledge or other disposition of all or
substantially ali of the corporate property and assets of the Corporation; and

3. In case of merger or consolidation.

In order that a dissenting stockholder may exercise his appraisal right, such dissenting stockholder must
have voted against the proposed corporate action at the annual meeting. Within thirty (30) days after the
date of the annual meeting at which meeting such stockholder voted against the corporate action, the
dissenting stockholder shall make a written derand on the Corporation for the fair value of his shares
which shall be agreed upon by the dissenting stockholder and the Corporation. If the proposed corporate
action is implemented, the Corporation shall pay the dissenting stockholder upon surrendering the
certificates of stock representing his sharcs, the fair value of said shares on the day prior to the date on
which the vote was taken. If the dissenting stockholder and the Corporation cannot agree on the fair
value of the shares within sixty (60) days from the date of stockholders’ approval of the corporate action,
then the determination of the fair value of the shares shall be made by three (3) disinterested persons, one
of whom shall be named by the dissenting stockholder, one by the Corporation and the third to be named
by the two (2) already chosen. The findings of the majority of the appraisers shall be final and their
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award shall be paid by the Corporation within thirty (30) days after such award is made. The procedure
to be followed in exercising the aporaisal right shall be in accordance with Sections 81 to 86 of the
Corporation Code.

Itern 3. Interest of Certain Persons in or Opposition to Matters to be Acted Upon

No director or officer of the Corporation has any substantial intersst, direct or indirect, in any of the
matters to be acted upon in the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.

No director has informed the Corporation of his opposition to amy matter tc be acted upon during the
Annual Stockholders® Meeting. '

B. CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

Item 4. Veting Securities and Principal Holders Thereof

The total number of shares of the Corporation outstanding and entitled to vote in the Annual
Stockholders” Meeting is 3,693,772,279 common shares. The record date for purposes of determining the
stockholders entitled to notice of and to vote at the Corporation’s Annual Stockholders® Meeting is 30
September 2009. Each stockholder shall be entitled to one (1) vote for each common share of stock held
as of the record date, '

Holders of the common shares of stock of the Corporation are entitled to vote on all matters to be voted
upon by the stockholders. Stockholders entitled to vote are also entitled to cumulative voting in the
election of directors. Section 24 of the Corporation Code states: “...In stock corporations, every
stockholder entitled to vote shall have the right to vote in person or by proxy the number of shares of
stock standing, at the time fixed in the by-laws, in his own namc on the stock books of the corporation, or
where the by-laws are silent, at the time of the election; and said stockholder tnay vote such number of
shares for as many persons as there are directors to be elected or he may cumulate said shares and. give
one candidate as many votes as the number of directors to be electad multiplied by the number of his
shares shall equal, or he may distribute them on the same principle among as many candidates as he shal
see fir "

Security Ownership of Record and Beneficlal Owners of at Least Five Percent (5%) of the
Corporation’s Securities as of 31 August 2009

Name of -
Beneficial
. Name and Address of Number of
Title of Owner and .. ,
Record Owner and - .| Citizenship Shares Percentage
Class Relationship with Issuer relationship Held
P with record €
owner

Common | PCD Nominee Corporation Please refer I o ]

shares | (Non-Filipino)’ to footnote | TNen-Filipino 1,093,745,941 29.6105%

' PCD Nominee Corporation is the registered owner of shares beneficially owned by participants in the Philippine
Ceniral Depositoty, Inc. (PCD), a private company organized to implement an automated book entry system of
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37" Floor, The Enterprise
Center

Ayala Avenue, Makati City
Relationship — please refer to
footnote

Common
shares

| Quaker Global Investments

B.V.?
Zonnebaan 33, 3542 Eb
Utrecht The Netherjands

Same as
indicated in
<¢olumn 2

Dutch

1,089,101.358

29.4848%

Relationship - Stockholder
Hong Way Holdings, Inc.’
20" Floor, LKG Tower
6801 Ayala Avenue, Makati
City |
Relationship - Stockholder

Same as
indicated in
column 2

Common
shares

Singaporean | 857,788,626 23.2226%

PCD Nomunee Corporation
(Filipino)*
37" Floor, The Enterprise
Center

' Ayala Avenue, Makati City
Relationship — pleas e referto
footnote

Pleasc refer
to footnote

Common
shares

Filipino | 300,150,284 | 8.1258%

Same as
indicated in

Common
shares

Guoco Assets (Philippines),

Tne.? Singaporean

233,594,962 6.9196%

handling securities transactions in the Philippines. While PCD Nominee Corporation is the registered-owner of the
shares in the Corporation’s books, the beneficial ownership of such shares pottains to PCD participants (brokers)
and/or their non-Filipino clients, whether individuals or corporations, in whose names these shares are recorded in
their respective books. Under PCD procedures, when an issuer of a PCD-eligible issue will hold a stockholders’
meeting, PCD will execute a pro-forma proxy in favor of the participants for the tots] number of shares in their
respective principal securities account, as well as for the total nurber of shares in their client securitios account. For
shares held in the principal securities account, the participant is appointed as proxy with full voting rights and
powers as registered owner of such shares. For shares held in the client securities account, the participant is
appointed as proxy with the obligation to constitute a sub-prexy in favor of its clients with fafl voting and other
rights for the number of shares beneficially owned by them.,

* Quaker Global Investments B.V. ("QGI") is a cotporation duly organized and existing nnder and b;} virtue of the
laws of the Netherlands with principal office at Zonnebaan 35, 3542 ER Utrecht, The Netherlands. QGI, through its
Board of Directors, has designated Mr. Sunil D Souza to vote its shares of stock in the Corporation.

* Hong Way Holdings, Ipc. ("HWHI") is a corporation duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of
the Philippines with principal office at the 20" Floor, LKG Tower, 6301 Ayala Avenue, Makati City. HWHI,
through its Board of Directors, usuatly designates Mr. Micky Yong to vote its shares of stock in the Corporation.

* Same as footnote 2 above except that the beneficial ownership of shares registered in the name of PCD Nominee
Corporation pertains to PCD participants (brokers) and/or their Filipino clients, whether individuals or corporations,
in whose names these shares are recorded in their respective books,

* Guoco Assets (Fhilippines), Inc. (“GAPI™) is a corporation duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the
laws of the Philippines with principal office at the 20" Floor, LKG Tower, 6801 Ayala Avenue, Makati City. GAPL
through its Board of Directors, usually designates Mr. Micky Yong to vote its shares of stock in the Corporation,




20" Floor, LKG Tower
6301 Ayala Avenue, Makati
City

Relationship — Stockholder

column 2

Security Ownership of Management as of 31 August 2009

Amount &
Tgll:; Name and Address of Owner g:::;i;;j Citizenship Peg;i’;: of
) Ownership
Micky Yong
Common Ch:_airjman of T‘he Board, President and Dirzsgioc?\ggl?‘lhip ‘
shares Chief Emcutwel()fﬁcer excent for one Singaporean 0.5414%
c/o K. 29 National Road, Tunasan, ot
Muntinlupa City quallfyllng share
Sunif D’ Souza T
Common | Non-Executive Director {* Indi Nil
shares | ¢/o 21% Floor, LKG Tower, fiian !
6801 Ayala Avenue, Makati City
James Eng, Ir.
Common | Non-Executive Director 1% Armer .
shares | c/o 50™ Floor, The Center, mencan it
1 92 Queen’s Road, Central, Hong Kong
Tsang Cho Tai (Allan Tsang)
Common | Nen-Executive Director .. .
shares | c/o 5Q% Floor, The Center, 1 British Nil
99 Queen’s Road, Central, Hong Kong
John L. Sigalos
Common Non-El;;ecutive Direﬂctor .
shares c/o 20" Floor Caroline Center 1% American Nil
28 Yun Ping Road, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong
‘Timothy E. Minges
Common Non-Eﬂ:::ec:utive Dire.cmr
shares c/o 20 F!oor Caroline Center 1# American Nil
28 Yun Ping Road, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong
Qasim Khan -
Common Non-Eﬂ:;cecutive Dire‘ctor
shares clo 20" F !oc)r Caroline Center 1* Pakistani Nil
28 Yun Ping Road, Cavseway Bay,
Hong Kong
Jose M. Periquet, Jr.
Common Non-rlg.xex:utive Director o -
shares c/o 3°F loor,rAthenaeum Building, I* Filipino Nil
160 L.P. Leviste Street, Salcedo Village,
Makati City




Rafael M. Alunan I

Independent Director

c/o 3™ Floor, Benpres Building, 1* Filipino Nil
Exchange Road corner Meralco Avenue, .

Ortigas Center, Pasig City

Comrnon
shares

Oscar 5. Reyes
Independent Director .
c¢/o Unit 2504 Corporate Center, 1% Filipino Wil
139 Valero Street, Salcedo Village,
Makati City

Commeon
shares

Partha Chakrabarti

Senior Vice-President and

Chief Financial Officer 0 Indian 0%
c/o Km. 29 National Road, Tunasan, |

Muntinlupa City

Felix 3. Yu

Executive Vice-President,

National Sales Operations

ofo Km. 29 National Road, Tunasan,
Muntinlupa City

Common
shares

349,998
Direct ownership

Common

shares Filipino 0.0095%

Roberto H. Goce
Senior Vice-President,
Corporate Services Group -0 Filipino 0%
¢/o Km. 29 National Road, Tunasan,
Muntinlupa City

Comimeon
shares

Daniel D. Gregorie, Ir.

Senior Vice-President, Manufacturing
and Logistics

¢/o Km. 29 National Road, Tunasan,
Muntinfupa City

Common
shares

70,000

Direct ownership Filipino 0.0019%

Ma. Rosario C.Z. Nava

Corporate Secretary

7™ Floor The Pearibank Centre

146 Valero Street, Salcedo Village,
Makati City

Common
shares

10,000

Direct ownership Filipino 0.0003%

* Each of the directors is the registered owner of at least one qualifving share.

The aggregate shareholdings of directors and key officers of the Corporation as of 31 August-2009
amounted to 20,430,008 shares which is approximately 0.5531% of the Corporation’s outstanding capital
stock., '

Changes in Control
The Corporation is not aware of any voting trust agreement or any other similar agreement which may

result in a change in control of the Corporation. No change in control of the Corporation has occurred
since the beginning of its Jast fiscal year.



Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The Corporation has significant related party transactions which are summarized as follows:

1.

The Corporation has Exciusive Bottling Agreements with PepsiCo, Inc. (“PepsiCo™), which has
29.4848% beneficial interest in the Corpuration through Quaker Global Investments BV, a
stockholder, up to year 2017 and Pepsi Lipton Internationa! Limited (“Pepsi Liption™), a joint venture
of PepsiCo, up to year 2012. Under the agreements, the Corporation is authorized to bottle, sell and
distribute Pepsi and Lipton beverage products in the Philippines.

In addition, PepsiCo and Pepsi Lipton shall supply the Corporation with the main raw materials
(concentrates) in the production of these beverage preducts and share in the funding of certain
marketing progeams. The agreements may be renewed by mutual agreement between the parties,
Under the agreements, PepsiCo and Pepsi Lipton have the right to terminate the agreements under
certain conditions, including failure to comply with tsrms and conditions of the appointment subject
to written notice and rectification period, change of ownership control of the Corporation, change of
ownership control of an entity which controls the Corporation, discontisiuance of bottling beverages
for 30 consecutive days, occurrence of certain events leading to the Corperation’s insolvency or
bankruptcy, change in management and contro] of the business, among other things. Total net
purchases {rom PepsiCo amounted to £2.6 billion, P2.4 billion and B2.4 billion in 2009, 2008 asd
2007, respectively. Total purchases from Pepsi Lipton for the fiscal years ended 30 June 2009 and
2008 amounted to B81 million and P94 million, respectively.

The Corporation has a cooperative advertising and marketing program with PepsiCo and Pepsi
Lipton that sets forth the agreed advertising and marketing activities and participation arrangement
during the years covered by the bottling agreements. In certain instances, the Corporation pays for
said expenses and claims reimbursement from PepsiCo. As of 30 Jume 2009, there are no
reimbursable marketing charges from PepsiCo. In 2008, reimbursable marketing ¢harges amounted
to P99 million. For the years ended 30 June 2009, 2008 and 2007, the Corporation incurred
marketing expenses amounting to B521 million, B665 million and 2468 million, respectively, The
Corporation’s receivables relating to said cooperative advertising and marketing program amounted
to #27 million and P37 million as of 30 June 2009 and 2008, respectively.

On 11 April 2007, the Corporation entered into a Performance Agreement with PepsiCo 1o meet
certain marketing and investment levels from 2007 to 2017, as required by the Exclusive Bottling
Agreements with PepsiCo. The Performance Agreement requires the Corporation to: (1) spend 2

specified percentage with a minimum amount for the beverage products; (2)make certain

investments based on a minimurmn percentage of the Corporation’s sales to expand its manufacturing
capacity; (3) invest in a minimum number of coolers per year to suppott distribution expansion; and
(4) expand the Corporation’s distribution capabilities in terms of the number of active routes, the
number of new routes and the number of trucks used for distribution support..

Certain parcels of land which are real properties of Nadeco Realty Corporation (“NRC™), an
associate, were mortgaged to secute a portion of the Corporation’s notes payable.

The Corporation leases these parcels of land where some of its bottling plants are located. Lease
expenses recognized amounted to £9.6 million and 811 million for the years ended 30 June 2009 and
2008, respectively. The Corporation has advances to NRC amounting to £38 million which bears
interest at a fixed rate of 10% per annum. The Corporation also has outstanding net receivables from
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NRC amounting to P49 million and £46 million as of 30 June 2009 and 2008, respectively, which are
unsecured and payable on demand.

4. The Corporation has outstanding working capital advances from Nadeco Holdings Corporation, an
associate, amounting to 82.3 million and £1.3 miliion as of 30 June 2009 and 2008, respectively, and
which are unsecured, non-interest bearing and payable on demand.

ftern 5, Directors and Executive Officers

Term of Office

Directors elected during the annual meeting of stockholders will hold office for one year until their
successors are duly elected and qualified, except in case of death, resignation, disqualification or removal
from office. Directors who were elected io fill any vacanev hold office only for the unexpired term of
their predecessors.

Directors

The following are the names, ages, citizenship and years position was assumed, of the incumnbent
directors, including independent directors, of the Corporation: -

" .~ 1 Year Position wag
Name Age Citizenship Assumed
Micky Yong 62 Singaporean 1997 a
Sunil I}’ Souza 4] Indian 2009
| James Eng, Jr. 67 Armerican 2003 -
Tsang Cho Tai (Allan Tsang) 59 British 2005
| John .. Sigalos 42 American 2009 o
Timothy E. Minges 51 American 2007
Qasim Khan 52 Pakistani 2008
Tose M. Periquet, Jr. 63 Filipino 2007 N
Rafael M. Alunap T1I* 61 Filipino 2007
Oscar . Reyes* 63 Filipino 2007 |

*Independent Director

Executive Officers

The following are the names, ages, positions, citizenship and periods of service of the incumbent officers
of the Corporation: '

Name Age | Citizenship Position 3‘;221 f;:ﬂ:g
iy Yors | s | G o |
Porha Chakaberd | 45 | ldim | O eorir Offenr. 00
relix & Y 0 | Flipino | e s oo, o




' s Senior Vice-President, 2006
Roberto H. Goce a5 Filipino Corporate Services Group
. . o . Senior Vice-President for 1998
Daniel D. Gregorio, Jr. 57 Filipino Manufacturing and Logistics |
Ma. Rosario C.Z. Nava 40 Filipino Corporate Secretary 2007

Background Information and Business Experience

Directors:

MICKY YONG

Mr. Yong has held the office of Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation since 2002, but he has been a
director of the Corporation since the Guoco Group Limited and its subsidiaries (“Guoco Group™)
acquired its interest in the Corporation in 1997. Since 1989, Mr. Yong has served as President of Guoco
Assets (Philippines), Inc., the Guoco Group’s principal investment vehicle in the Philippines. Mr. Yong
was the country manager and director of Dao Heng Bank Philippines and a director of First Lepanto
Taisho Insurance, Tutuban Properties Inc., Guoco Securities Philippines and several other corporations
under the Guoco Group. Mr. Yong holds a Bachelor of Business Administration degree from the
University of Singapore.

SUNIL D’SOUZA

Mr. D"Souza is Country Manager for the Philippines of PepsiCo. He has bzen with PepsiCofor the past
8 years and held the position of Sales Director for the Philippines priot to his current appointment, He
holds a Bachelor of Engineering degree from the Pondicherry Engineering College, Pondicherry
(University of Madras) and 2 management degree frora the Indian Institute of Management in Caicutta.

JAMES ENG, JR.

Mr. Eng has been an Executive Director of the Guoco Group Limited since 2001. He is responsible for
group staff support functions for the Guoco Group. Before he joined the Guoco Group in 1994, Mr. Eng
previously worked with Hiram Walker, a division of Allied-Lyyons. Postings included New York, Miami,
London, Hong Kong and Windsor Canada. During his time with Brout, Issacs & Co., Certified Public
Accountants, in New York City, he was responsible for the Management Services Division and was a
Management Consultant in New York for Computer Methods Corporation. He holds a Bachelor of
Business Administration degree from the University of North Carolina. \

TSANG CHO TAT (ALLAN TSANG)

Mr. Tsang is the Chief Financial Officer of the Guoco Group Limited. He is a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, as well as an associate member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and

Wales. Mr. Tsang was an associate of an international firm of accountants before Joining the Guoco
Group in 1989,
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JOHN L. SIGALOS

Mr. Sigalos is currently PepsiCo’s Chief Financial Officer for the Asia-Pacific region. He has occupied a
variety of positions in PepsiCo for the past 12 years, including being Chief Financial Officer of PepsiCo
Thailand and Vice-President for Non-Carbonated Beverages in PepsiCo’s China business unit. He holds
an MBA from the Wharton Schoal, University of Pennsylvania with dual major in Finance and Strategic
Management and a Bachelor of Arts degree in East Asian stadies (Cum laude) from Yale University.

TIMOTHY E. MINGES

Mr. Minges is President of PepsiCo Asia Pacific for PepsiCo. He has been with PepsiCo for 25 years
including 15 years in Asia with a wide variety of assignments in China, Thailand, Indonesia and India.
He holds 2 B.S. in Accounting from Miami University in Oxford, Ohio.

QASIM KHAN

Mr. Khan has been connected with PepsiCo for the last 21 years and has occupied various executive and
managerial roles in different regional offices of PepsiCo. He is curtently General Manager of PepsiCo’s
North Asia Pakistan Philippines Business Unit. Prior to joining PepsiCo, he worked for Procter &
Gamble. He holds an MBA and Marketing degrees (with honors) from Michigan State University,

JOSE M. PERIQUET, JR.

Mr. Periquet is the President and Chief Executive Officer of the Metropolitan Insurance Company, Inc,, a
position he has held since 1999 up to the present. He has been employed by Metropolitan Insurance
since 1985, when he joined as Acting President and Manager. He joined AIG in New York in 1967 and
was later assigned to AIU (Philippines), Inc. where he held the position of Senior Vice-President and
Director. Mr. Periquet is also a director of MIC Holdings, Inc., Bradstock Insurance Brokers Inc. and the
Athenaeum Condominium Corporation. Mr. Periquet holds a Bachelor’s degree in Economics from
Ateneo de Manila University and 3 Master’s degree in Economics from Fordham Untversity.

RAFAEL M., ALUNAN HI

Mr. Alunan is currently the President and a Trustee of the Lopez Group Foundation, Inc. since 2008, and
4 Trustee since 2008 of First Philippine Conservation Inc, and Bayan Academy. He also heads the Lopez

Group’s Lifelong Wellness System (since 2006), and is the President and Director of FWV Biofields,
Ine. (since 2008).

Mr. Alunan also sits in the Boards of Sun Life of Canada (Philippines), Tnc. (since 2004), Sun Lifo
Financial Plans, Inc. (since 2004), Sun Life Asset Management Co., Inc. (since 2009), Pepsi Cola
Produets (Philippines), Ine. (since 2007), and the Management Association of the Philippines (since
2008). He recently joined the Boards of the League of Corporate Foundations and the University of St.
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La Salle. He is also the President of Kilosbayan, a non-partisan ethics-oriented people’s organization;
and is a columpist of the Business World.

He served in the Cabinets of Presidents Corazon C. Aquino and Fidel V. Ramos as Secretary of Tourism
and Secretary of the Interior and Local Government, respectively. He holds the rank of Colonel in the
Armed Forces of the Philippines commanded the 131* Infantry Division (Standby Reserve) and the 9%
Infantry Division (Ready Reserve) of the Philippine Army.

Mr. Alupan obtained his double degree in Business Administration and History-Political Science from
the De La Salle University; attended the Master’s in Business Administration-Senior Executive Program
at the Ateneo de Manila University; earned a Master's degree in Public Administration from Harvard

University’s John F. Kennedy School of Government; and is a graduate of the Philippine Army's
Command and General Staff College.

OSCAR 8, REYES

Mr. Reyes is the Chairman of Link Edge, Inc. He has been an Independent Director of the Philippine
Long Distance Telephone Company since 2001, a Director of Bank of the Philippine Islands since 2003,
an External Director of Sun Lifc Financial Plans, Inc. since 2006, an Independent Director of Manila
Water Company since 2005, an Independent Director of SMART Communications Ine. since 2006, and
an Independent Director of Ayala Land, Inc. since 2009, among other companies.

He previously served the Shell Group of Companies in the Philippines in various capacities, including
Country Chairman and President of Pilipinas Shell Petroleum Corporation, Managing Director of Shell
Philippines Exploration B.V., Vice-President for Finance, Legal and Corporate Affairs and Vice-
President for Human Resources of Pilipinas Shell Petroleum Corporation, Area Finance Adviser for
South America and Regional Planning Adviser for Western Hemisphere & Africa Region for the Shell

International Petroleum Co. of London and General Manager for Treasury and Planning of Pilipinas
Shell.

Mr. Reyes also served as Executive Vice-President and General Manager of the Philippine Petroleum
Corporation, and Project Team Leader and Head of Special Studies of the Private Development
Corporation of the Philippines.

Mr. Reyes holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics (cum laude) from Ateneo de Manila University.
His post-graduate studies include: Business Management Consultants and Trainers Program of the Japan
Productivity Center/Asian Productivity’ Organization in Japan and Hong Kong Intemnational
Management Development Program Icading to a Diploma in Business Administration and Certificate in
Export Promotion in Waterloo University, Ontario, Canada; European Business Program from the United
Kingdom, The Netherlands, France, Germany and Switzerland; Master in Business Administration
studies at the Ateneco Graduate School of Business Administration; Program for Management
Development from Harvard Business School; and Commercial Management Study Program at the
Lensbury Centre of the $hell International Petroleum Company in the United Kingdom.
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Executive Officers:

PARTHA CHAKRABARTI

Mr. Chakrabarti has been employed by PepsiCo since 1994 and he remains a PepsiCo employee while
holding his current position in the Corporation under a formal secondment agreement. Mr. Chakrabarti
began his career with PepsiCo India, where hie held a number of positions before moving to Vietnam as
Chief Financial Officer of PepsiCo’s business there. Before joining PepsiCo, he worked for 1CT India.
He kolds a Bachelor of Science degree in Commerce from the University of Calcutta and is an Associate
of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in India.

FELIX 5. YU

Mr. Yu joined the predecessor of the Corporation in 1983 and has served in various roles in sales and
plant management. Frior to joining the Corporation, he worked for the CFC-URC Group of Companies
and before that, Nestle Philippines. He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration
from De La Salle University.

ROBERTO H. GOCE

Mr. Goee’s background is in sales and logistics. Prior to joining the Corporation in 1997, he worked for
San Miguei Corporation and before that, he held various positions in grains and fertilizer industries. His
experience encompasses business planning, management and organization audits, and training and
development. He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Management from the Ateneo de
Manila University and is a founding member of the Distribution Management Association of the
Philippines,

DANIEL D, GREGORIU, JR.

Mr. Gregorio began his career as a systems analyst for Coca-Cola Bottling Philippines, Inc. and rose to
the position of Chief Accountant. In 1987, he moved to Indonesia as Country General Manager for
Coca-Cola Amatil, the owner of the local Coca-Cola bottler. He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in
Industrial Engineering,

Ma. RosSARIO C.Z. Nava

Ms. Nava is a practicing lawyer and a member of the Integrated Bar of the Philippines since 1995. She
has been a director and the Corporate Secretary of Solectron Philippines Inc. since 2005 and has been the
Corporate Secretary of CPAC Monier Philippines, Inc. since 2004, She was also a Director of Hewlett-
Packard Philippines Corp. from 2001 to 2002, and then again in 2004 up to 2007, and was its Corporate
Secretary from 2006 to 2007. She holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Management, Major in Legal
Management (with honors) from the Atenco de Manila University and a Jaris Doctor degree from the
Ateneo de Manila School of Law.

13



No Director has resigned or declined to stand for re-election to the Board of Directors since the date of
the last Annual Stockholders’ Meeting due to disagreement with the Corporation on any matter relating
to the Corporation’s operations, policies or practices.

No single person is expected to make a significant contribution to the business since the Corporation
considers the collective efforts of all its employees as instrumental to the overall success of the
Corporation’s business. The Corporation is rot aware of any family relationship between or among the
aforementioned Directors or Executive Gificers up to the fourth civil degree. '

Except for the payment of annual directors’ fee and per diems to directors , the Corporation has not had
any trapsaction during the last two (2) years in which any Director or Executive Officer had a direct or
indirect interest. :

None of the aforementioned Directors or Executive Officers is or has been involved in any criminal or
bankruptcy proceeding, or is or has been subject to any judgment of a competent court barring or
otherwise limiting his involvement in any type of business, or has been found to have violated any
securities laws during the past five (5) years and up to the laiest date,

Nomination for Election as Members of the Board of Directors

The following have been nominated for re-election as members of the Board of Directors for the ensuing
year (2009-2010):

Micky Yong
Sunil D’Souza
James Eng, Jr.
Tsang Cho Tai (Allan Tsang)
John L. Sigalos
Timothy E. Minges
Qasim Khan
Jose M. Periquet, Jr.
Rafael M. Alunan III (Independent Director)
Oscar 5. Reyes (Independent Director)

All of the above nominees are incumbent Directors. Messrs. Micky Yong and James Eng. Jr. have been
formally nominated by Guoco Assets (Philippines), Inc. Messrs, Sunil D* Souza, John L. Sigalos,
Timothy E. Minges and Qasim Khan have been formally nominated by Quaker Global Investments BV,
Messrs. Tsang Cho Tai (Allan Tsang) and Jose M. Periquet, Jr. have been formally nominated by Hong
Way Holdings, Inc. Guoco Assets (Philippines), Inc. and Hong Way Holdings, Inc. together COmprise
the Guoco Group and with Quaker Global Investments B.V. are stockholders of the Corporation,

The Corporation has complied with the guidelines on the nomination and election of independent
directors set forth in Rule 38 of the Amended Implementing Rules and Regulations of the Securities
Reguiation Code. The independent directors, Messrs. Rafael M. Alunan IIT and Oscar 5. Reyes have been
nominated by Ederlinda B. Yabut and Roberto §. Franco, respectively, registered stockholders of the
Corporation who are not directors, officers or substantial stockholders of the Cotporation and who are
not related to any of Mr. Alunan and Mr. Reyes. Attached are the updated Certificates of Qualification
for 2009 of the nominated independent directors Messrs, Alunan and Reyes.
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Mr. Reyes is the incumbent Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Corporation. The incumbent
members of the Audit Committee are as follows: Messts. John L. Sigalos, Tsang Cho Tai (Allan Tsang),
and Rafael M. Alunan I11.

Mr. Al,unan, on the other hand, is an incumbent member of the Nomination and Compensation and
Remuneration Committees of the Corporation.

The incumbent Chairman and members of the Nomination Committee are as follows: Messrs. Micky
Yong (Chairman), James Eng, Jr., John L. Sigalos and Rafael M, Alunan I11.

The incumbent Chairman and members of the Compensation and Remuneration Committee are as
follows: Messrs. James Eng Jr. (Chairman), Micky Yong, John L. Sigatos and Rafael M. Alunan IIL

In 2007, the Corporation amended its By-Laws providing for the procedure for nominating members of
the Corporation’s Board of Directors. The By-Laws provide that the Nomination Committee shall pre-
screen and shortlist all candidates nominated to become & member of the Board of Directors in
accordance with the qualifications and disqualifications provided for in the Articles of Incorporation, By-
Laws, the Manual of Corporaie Governance, applicable laws, regulations and resolutions and rules
passed by it, the stockholders and the Board of Directors. Accordingly, on 30 September 2009, the
Nomination Committee approved the final list of candidates for the Board of Directors which included al
of the abovenamed individuals.

Item 6. Compensation of Directors and ¥xecutive Officers

The aggregate compensation paid in 2007 and 2008, and estimated to be pajd in 2009, to the Executive
Officers of the Corporation is set out below:

Name Position Year Salary Bonus ' Others

Micky Yong ~ Chairman, President &
Chief Executive Officer
Felix 5. Tu Executive Vice-President,

National Sales Operations

Partha Chakrabarti Senior Vice-President &
- Chief Financial Officer
Danie] D Gregorio, Ir. | Senior Vice-President,
Manufacturing & h
Logistics

Roberto H. Goce
Senior Vice-President,
Corporate Services Group

Aggregate for above- 2007 | 42,300,000.00 | 19,300,000.00 -

named officers ' 2008 | 43,708,000.00 | 22,066,000.00 -
2009 | 40,716,000.00 | 11,618,000.00

All other directors and 2007 - - -
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officers as a group 2008 - -
unnamed 2009 - =

1,336,764.72*
3.352,941.00*+

*This relates to per diem allowances paid 1o the directors. ,
** This includes both per diem allowances and annual divectors’ fees paid for fiscal year ended 30 June 2009,

There are no special employment contracts between the Corporation and the above Executive Officers.

Non-executive Directors are entitled to a per diem allowance of US$$1,000 for each attendance in the
Corporation’s Board meetings and committee meetings, except for Audit Committee mectings where the
per diem allowance is US$2,000. In addition, each Divector is entitled to receive an annual directors’ fee
in the amount of Five Hundred Thousand Pesos (R500,000.00). Seven (7) Directors representing the
Guoco Group and Quaker Global Investments B.V. have waived the per diem allowance as well as the
annual directors’ fee.

There are no outstanding warrants or options held by the above Fxecutive Officers and all such officers
and Directors as a group.

Ttem 7. Independent Public Accountants
The auditing firm of KPMG Manabat Sanagustin & Co. is being recommended for election as external
anditor for the ensuing year (2009-20010).

Representatives of said firm are expected to be present at the Annual Stockholders® Meeting and will
have the opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so. and are expected to be available to
respond to appropriate questions. ’

Aggregate fees billed by the Corporation’s external auditor for professional services in relation to (1) the
audit of the Corporation’s annual financial statements and services in connection with (a) statutory and
regulatory filings and (b) the initial public offering of the Corporation’s shares; -and (ii) tax accounting,
compliance, advice, planning and any other form of tax services are summarized as follows:

FY 2009 FY 2008 Total
Statutory audit fees £ 3.50 Million 3. 40 Million 6.9 Mjllion
IPO-related audit fees - 215,70 Million 215,70 Million
- Tax fees P0.33 Million P0.25 Million P0.58 Million
Total 23,83 Million £19.35 Million P23 18 Million

-
The Audit Commitiee of the Corporation reviews and approves the audit plag and scope of work for the
above services and ensures that the rates are competitive as compared to the fees charged by other
equally competent external anditors performing similar services.

During the Corporation’s two most recent fiscal years or any subsequent interim periods, there was no
instance where the Corporation’s public accountants resigned or indicated that they decline to stand for
re-election or were dismissed nor was there any instance where the Corporation had any disagreement
with its public accountants on any accounting or financial disclosure issue.
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In compliance with Rule 68 (3) (b} (iv) of the Securities Regulation Code, the Corporation has engaged
Ms. Emerald Anne C. Bagnes, partner of KPMG Manabat Sanagustin & Co., to sign the Corporation’s
audited financial statements as of 30 June 2009. Ms. Bagnes has been signing the audited financial
statements of the Corporation since 2006, The Corporation became publicly listed with the Phihppine
Stock Exchange only on 1 February 2008.

Item 8. - Compensation Plans

There is no action or matter to be taken up with respect to any plan pursuant to which cash or non-cash
compensation may be paid or distributed.

C. ‘ISSUA-NCE AND EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES

Item 9. Authorization ¢r Issuance of Securities Other than for Exchange

There is no action or matter to be taken up with respect to the authorization or issuance of any securities,

Item 19. Modification or Exchange of Securities

There is no action or matter to be taken up with respect to the modification of any class of securities of
the Corporation, or the issuance or authorization for issuance of one class of securities cf the Corporation
in exchange for outstanding securities of another class.

Ttem 11. Financial and Other Information

The Corporation has incorporated by reference the following as contained in the Management Report in
accordance with Rule 68 of the Amended Rules and Regulations of the Securities Regulation Code:

1. Audited financial statemcnts as of 30 Tune 2009 and 2008,
2. Management’s discussion and analysis or plan of operation; and
3. Information on business overview, properties, legal proceedings, market price of

securities, dividends paid and corporate governance.

Item 12. Mergers, Consolidations, Acquisitions and Similar Matters

There is no action or matter to be taken up with respect to mergers, consolidations, acquisitions and
similar matters,

Item 13. Acquisition or Disposition of Property

There is no action or matter to be taken up with respect to the acquisition or disposition of any property.
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ltem 14,

Restatement of Accounts

There is no action or matter to be taken up with respect to the restatement of any asset, capital, or surplus
account of the Corporation,

b. OTHER MATTERS

Jtem 15.

Action with Respect to Reports

The following reports/minutes of meeting will be submitted for approval by the stockholders:

1.

Tiem 16,

Minutes of the Annuval Stockholders® Meeting (ASM) held on 28 October 2008 which
includes items on (i) Approval of the Minutes of the Previous ASM heid on 29
November 2007 (ii) President’s Report for Fiscal Year 2007 to 2008; (iii) Approval of
Audited Financial Statements as ot 30 June 2008; (iv) Ratifization of Acts of the Roard
of Directors and Management for 2007 to 2008; (v) Election of Directors, including
Independent Directors; (vi) Approval of the Payment of Annual Directors’ Fee; and (vii)
Appointment of External Auditors; and

Audited Financial Statements for the Fiscal Year ending 30 June 2009,

Matters Not Required to be Submitted

All actions or matters to be taken up during the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting will require the vote of
the security holders.

Item 7.

Amendment of Charter, By-Laws or Other Diocuments

There is no action or matter to be taken up with respect to any amendment of the Corporation’s Articles
of Incorporation, By-Laws or other documents.

Ttem 18.

Other Proposed Actions ' -

Ratification of all acts and resolutions of the Board of Directors and Management for the
period] July 2008 to 30 June 2009 which include resolutions on the election of officers
and Board committee members; placement of additional funds in a trust account to
supplement the existing retirement fund; and other resolutions issued in the normal
course of the business operations of the Corporation such as updating of authorized
signatories for various bank and other transactions and applications for various credit
facilities, among others;
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2. Election of the members of the Board of Direciors, including the Independent Directors,
for the ensuing calendar year; and

3. Appointmert of External Auditors.

Item 19. Voting Procedures
Manuner of voting

In all items for approval, except in the election of directors, each share of stock entitles its registered
Owner to ong vote,

For the purpose of electing directors, a stockholder may vote such number of his‘her shares for as many
persons as there are directors to be elected or he/she may cumalatc said shares and give one candidate as
many votes as the numbet of directors to be elected multiplied by the number of his/her shares shall
equal, or he/she may distribute them in the same principle among as many candidates as he/she shall see
fit.

As required by the Corporaticn’s By-laws, voting will be done by ballot.
Voting requirements

(a) With respect to the election of directors, candidates who received the highest number of votes
shall be declared elected,

(b) With respect to the adoption of the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 30 Tune
2009, as well as the approval or ratification of the other actions set forth under the heading
“Other Proposed Actions™ abave, the vote of a majority of the outstanding capital stock entitled
to vote and represented in the meeting is required to approve such matters.

Method of counting votes

The Corporate Secretary, assisted by her staff and the stock transfer agent, will be responsible for
counting and tabulating the votes based on the number of shares entitled to vote owned by the
stockholders who are present or represented by proxies at the Annual Stockholders” Meeting.

UPON THE WRITTEN REQUEST OF A STOCKHOLDER, THE COMPANY UNDERTAKES
TO FURNISH SAID STOCKHOLDER A COPY QF SEC FORM 17-A FREE OF CHARGE,
EXCEPT FOR EXHIBITS ATTACHED THERETO WHICH SHALL BE CHARGED AT COST.

ANY WRITTEN REQUEST FOR A COPY OF SEC FORM 17-A SHALL BE ADDRESSED AS
FOLLOWS;

PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC.
Km. 29 National Road
Tunasan, Muntinlupa City 1773 Philippines

Attention: Mr. Partha Chakrabarti
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SIGNATURE PAGE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulafiﬁn
Code, the isswershas duly caused this report to be gigned on its
behalf by the undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

%%PSI COLA PRODUCTS PHYLIPPINES. INC.

TﬂL&CHAKRAB&RTI
Ch:e_-f Financial Officer

30 September 2009
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ANNEX A

MANAGEMENT REPORT

1. GENERAL NATURE AND SCOPE OF THE BUSINESS
Overview

Pepsi-Cola Products Philippines, Inc. (the “Corporation™ was registered with the Philippine
Securities and Exchange Comumission on 8 March 1989 primarily to engage in manufacturing, sales
and distribution of beverages. The Corporation is the licensed bottler of PepsiCo, Inc. {“PepsiCo™)
beverages in the Philippines. It manufactures and packages its products at- 11 production plants
throughout the Philippines. The Corporation’s portfolio of products includes cola and flavored
carbonated beverages, including low-caloric derivatives, as well as juices, iced teas, sports drinks
and energy drinks. Its brands include well-known beverage brands such as Pepsi, Diet Pepsi, Pepsi
Max, 7Up, Diet 7Up, Mountain Dew, Gatorade, Lipton Iced Tea, Tropicana, Propel and Sting.

The Corporation distributes its products throngh 100 sales offices, together with an extensive third
party distribution network, to approximately 296,000 outlets, including supermarkets, restaurants,
bars, and small grocery stores. Iis sales volumes depend on the reach of its distribution network. It
increases the reach of its distribution system by adding routes and increasing penetration by adding
outlets on existing routes that currently do not stock its products. It relies on a number of chanpels to
reach retail outlets, including direct sales, distributors and whalesalers.

Philippine Beverage Industry

The beverage market in the Philippines is highly competitive. The Corporation cotnpetes primarily
on the basis of advertising and marketing programs to create brand awarcness, price and price
promotions, new product development, distribution methods and availability, packaging and
customer goodwili,

The Corporation’s competitors in the carbonated beverages market are The Coca-Cola Company,
Asiawide Refreshments Corporation, and Asia Brewery Incorporated. The Corporation believes that
the substantial investment i multiple plants, distribution infrastructure and systems and the float of
returnable glass bottles (“RGBs”) and plastic shells required to operate a nationwide beverage
business using RGBs represent significant barriers to potential competitors in widening their reach.

The market for non-carbonated beverages (“NCBs™) is more fragmented. Some of the Corporation’s
competitors in this market are The Coca-Cola Company, San Migue] Corporation, Universal Robina
Corporation, Zesto Corporation, among others. In recent years, the non-carbonated beverage miarket
has been relatively fluid, with frequent product Jaunches and shifting consumer preferences. The
Corporation expects that these trends will continue.

Customers

The Corporation sells its products through supermarkets, convenience stores, bars, sari-sari stores
and carinderias. Of these, the sari-sari stores and carinderias are by far the most numerous, although
the sales volume of these individual outlets is typically very small. In larger outlets such as
supermarkets, which stock the products of a number of beverage suppliers, the Corporation’s



marketing efforts tend to focus on increasing the amount of shelf spacc and the number of displays in
the outlet. Smaller outlets may have a relationship with only one or two beverage suppliers, and so
the Corporation’s efforts are directed towards securing the account. In outlets where its products are
sold for immediate consumption, part of the Corporation®s efforts is to ensure that its products are
suitably cooled and it offers many outlets branded refrigeration equipment, as well as signage and
other merchandising.

The Corporation, together with PepsiCo and Pepsi Lipton, implement joint marketing strategies to
promote the sale and consumption of the Corporation’s products. It tailors its marketing efforts to
‘meet the needs of its various ¢ustomer bases, In tailoring its marketing efforts, the Corporation
considess the demographics of the various groups of consumers; the types of locations where they
might be purchasing or consuming soft drinks; the price levels their particular consumption patterns
will support; regional and personal differences in desired product mix and availability; unmet niche
markets; and the actions of its competilors.

The Corporation relies extensively on advertising, consumer sales promotions and non-price retailer
incentive programs. It designs these programs to target the particular preferences of the soft drink
consumner. It advertises its products extensively through television, radio, print, and billboards
throughout the Philippines. It also makes extensive use of in-store point-of-sale advertising to
reinforce the national and local advertising and to stimulate demand. The Corporation runs seasonal
and one-off promotions, and sponsors or otherwise acquires rights to associate its brands with major
sporting and other events. It also benefit from PepsiCo’s large global advertising presence and brand
recognition. Incentive programs include providing retailers with refrigerators and coolers for the
display and cocling of soft drink products. Other incentive programs include providing free point-
of-sale display materials and complimentary soft drink products. Sales promotions include
sponsorship of community activities, sporting, cultural and social events. There sre also consumer
sales promations, such as contests, sweepstakes and give-aways.

>

Principal Suppliers

Over balf of the Corporation’s total costs comprise purchases of raw materials. Its largest purchases
are of sugar and beverage concentrates. The Corporation purchases all its sugar requirements
domestically because of import restrictions imposed by the Philippine government. It purchases all
of its beverage concentrates from PepsiCo and Pepsi Lipton at prices that are fixed as a percentage of

the wholesale prices the Corporation charges for the finished products, subject to a floor price in
United States dollars.

The Corporation also incurs substantial packaging costs. The major components of this expense are
purchases of PET pre-forms, which the Corporation converts into PET bottles at its plant, non-
reusable glass bottles, aluminum cans and closures. The Corporation also makes regular purchases
of RGBs to maintain its float at appropriate levels. The Corporation purchases each of these
materials from a small number of suppliers, including suppliers based in the Philippines and in other
parts of Asia, usually under shoit term, fixed price contracts. ‘

Legal Proceedings

From time to time, the Corporation is involved in litigation in the ordinary course of its business. The
majority of the cases in which it is a party are cases the Corporation brings to recover debts in
relation to unpaid receivables by its trade partners or in relation to cash or route shortages, private
criminal prosecutions that it brings (generally for Jow value offenses such as theft of product or
distribution equipment, fraud, and bouncing checks), labor cases for alleged illegal dismissal {which



are usually accompanted by demands for reinstatement in the Corporation without loss of seniority
rights, payment of separation pay, and payment of backwages, moral and. exemplary damages, and
attorney’s fees), a small number of civil cases brought agzinst the Corporation based on diverse
causes of action, and consumer cases brought against it involving allegations of defective products.

As a result of a promotion in 1992, civil cases were filed against the Corporation in which thousands
of individuals claimed to hold numbered bottle crowns that entitled them to a cash prize. The
Philippine Supreme Court has consistently held in at least 7 fipal and executory decisions in the last
5 years that the Corperaiion is not Hable to pay the amounts claimed. In the most recent of these
decisions, the Supreme Court dismissed a similar ¢laim, reiterating that it is bound by its
pronouncement in a number of cases invelving this promotion. By virtue of the precedential effect of
the decided cases, the Corporation expects the remaining cases to be dismissed in due course. OFf the
remaining cases, 13 cases involving at least 88 claimants are still with the Regional Trial Courts, 10
cases involving 465 claimants which have been dismissed by the Regional Trial Courts are pending
transmittal to the Court of Appeals, 11 cases involving at least 25 claimants are pending with the
Court of Appeals and 2 cases are pending with the Supreme Court. ‘

The Corporation does not belicve that the liigation in which it is currently involved or which is
presently pending or threatened against it is material to it, either individually or in the aggregate.
The Corporation has not, in the past 3 years, been involved in any bankrupicy, recetvership or other
similar proceedings.

II. - MARKET FOR ISSUER’S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHEOLDER
MATTERS :

Market Information .
The Corporation’s common shares were listed with the Philippine Stock Exchange (“PSE™) on 1
February 2008. The high and low sales prices of such shares for the 1% up to the 4™ quarters of the
fiscal year ending 30 June 2009 are set out below,

Ll FY ending 30 June 2009 Bigh Low
1" quarter (July to September £2.00 P2.60
2008) |
2" quarter P0.87 B0.35
October to December 2008)
3rd quarter P0.92 ' P0.92
(January to Marck 2009)
4™ quarter - £1.38 £1.36 =
(April to June 2009)

Stockholders

The Corporation has approximately 638 holders of common shares (with the PCD Nominee
Corporation (Filipino) and (Non-Filipino) considered as two holders) as of 31 August 2009 based on
the records of the Corporation’s stock transfer agent, Stock Transfer Service Inc. (“STSI"). The



following are the Corporation’s top 20 holders of common shares based on the report furnished by

STS1 as of 30 June 2009,
Number of Percentage of
No. Name _ Shares Owners%ip
1 | PCD Nominee Corporation (Non-Filipino) 2,207,129,529 59.7527%
2 | Quaker Global Investments B.V. 1,089,101,358 29 4R48%
3 | PCD Nominee Corporation (Filipino) 299,958,284 8.1206%
4 | Orion Land Inc, 70,000,060 1.8951%
5 | Micky Yong 20,000,001 0.5414%
6 | Joseph Martin H. Borromeo 650,000 0.0176%
7 | M.J. Sorizno Trading Ing, 450,000 0.0122%
8 | Lucio W. Yan 300,000 (.0081%
9 | Winefreda O. Madarang 250,000 0.0068% |
10 | Noe V. Behagan 230,000 {).(068%%
a

1 Valeriano A. Lugti ' 220,000 0.0060%
12 | Luis G. Dabao 200,600 ' 0.0054%
13 | Felix 8. Yu ' 149,998 0.0041%
14 | Bernarde Merchan 140,000 0.6038%
15 | Rene B. Blancaver ‘ 137,000 0.0037% |
16 | Victor Martin J. Soriano 130,000 0.0035%
17 | Juanito R. Ignacio 100.000 " 0.0027%
18 | Jose I Umali 100,000 0.0027%
19 | Ma. Corazcn V. Pineda 100,000 0.0027%

| 20 | Ma. Celeste §. Narciso 100,000 0.0027%
21 | Emmanuel M. Cabusao 100,000 0.0027% |

Cash Dividends

The Corporation declared. cash dividends amounting to £369 million in fiscal year ending 30 June
2009 and B400 million in fiscal year ending 30 June 2007.  The details of these cash dividend
declarations are as follows:

‘ Payable to
: Dividend Per  Stockholders of
Date of Declaration Share

Record as of Date of Paymentk
21 June 2007 20.12 21 Jupe 2007 20 August 2007
30 September 2008 £0.10 15 October 2008 7 November 2008

There was no dividend declaration in fiscal year ending 30 Tune 2008,
Dividend Policy

The Corporation declares dividends to stockholders of record which are paid from the Corporation’s
unrestricted retained earning. Any future dividends it pays will be at the discretion of the Board after



taking into account the Corporation’s earnings, cash flow, financial condition, capital and operating
progress, and other factors as the Board may consider relevant. The Corporation’s present policy is
to pay cash dividends of up to 50% of its annual net income. This policy may be subject to future
revision. ‘

Cash dividends are subject to approval by the Board without need for stockholders’ approval. Stock
dividends require the further approval of the stockholders representing no less than 2/3 of the
Corporation’s outsianding capital stock.

Recent Sales of Unregistered or Exempt Securities including Recent Issuance of Securities
Constituting an Exempt Transaction :

There has been no recont sale of unregistered or exempt sccurities including recent issuance of
securities constituting an exempt transaction.

II. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Please refer to the Audited Financial Statements of the Corporation as of 30 June 2009 which is
attached hereto as Exhibit 1.

IV. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING
AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

There has been no change in the independent auditing firm or handling partner or disagreements with
the independent. CPA on matters relating to the application and interpretation of accounting
principles or practices, tax laws and regulations, financial statement disclosures or audit scope and
procedures during the two (2) most recent fiscul vears.

VY. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OR PLAN OF OPERATION
Results of Operations for the fiscal year 2009 versus 2008

Fiscal ycar 2009 registered a healthy 5% growth in net income and 19% growth in operating income
over year ago level. It maintained profitability, with EBITDA margin of 16%, EBIT margin of 8%,
and Net Income margin of 6%. The corresponding numbers for fiscal year 2008 are 15%, 8% and
6%, ' respectively.

Net sales growth of 10% is dtiven mainly by growth in NCB brands such as Sting, Tropicana and
(atorade as well as carbonated softdrink (“CSID*) growth in flavors. -
In line with its strategy of aggressively tapping the healthy growth prospects for NCBs with health
and wellness as the platform and growing the business by targeting the broad CD mass market that
still constitutes the majority of the Philippine population, the Corporation continues to expand its
offering of beverage products to make NCBs available to more Filipinos at affordable prices and
convenient packaging. The Corporation has since completed the expansion projects in Cebu, San
Femando and oilo which made it possible to offer its NCB products in 8 oz. RGBs all over the
COUITY.

The Corporation Jaunched new product innovations such as Tropicana Summer Blends and Gatoradc



Tiger and came out with high-impact new packaging formats such as Pepsi Max black Jong-neck 500
ml. PET, among other things in order to create buzz and bring excitement to the consumers as well
as use packaging to communicate and have z dislogue with consumers. It also launched the highly
successful Mountan Dew 750 mi RB to leverage the brand's strong pull in trade.

The intensifiea competition from a crowded CSD market along with the challenge posed by low-
priced brands compelied the Corporation to drop its prices. To counteract the adverse effect of low
price, commoditized cola segment on its profitability, the Corporation continues to maintain a
healthy revenue mix resulting to a 3% highe average LRB prices,

The weak economy, high inflation and stiff competition caused undue pressure on revenues and
costs. Gross profit margin slightly dropped from 31.6% in 2008 to 29 4% in 2009 due to increased
cost of inputs such as sugar, CO2, packaging materials, fuel, etc during the 1st half of the fiscal year,
as well as depressed CSD pricing brought about by intense compctition. In spite of lower gross
profit margin and higher manufacturing depreciation, gross profit grew by 2.0% due to volume
growth. '

On the other hand, operating income grew by 18.8% and operating income margin registered an
improvement from 7.4% in 2008 to 8.0% in 2009 due to effective cost management. However, an
increase in effective tax rate from 24.0% in 2008 to 32.3% in 2009 caused the net income margin to
stightly drop from 5.9% to 5.6%.

Operating expenses as a ratio to net sales decreased from 24.2% to 21.4% mainly due to decrease in
marketing expenses by 21.7%. The decrease in marketing expenses as a percentage of net sales
dropped from 5.1% to 3.7% is due to targeted and prudent marketing spending program initiated by
Management in 2009, ‘

As a percentage of net sales, selling and distribution (S&D) expenses decreased from 14.1% to
13.4%. In terms of absolute amount, S&D expenses increased by 3.9% as compared to a year ago
level. The increase can be attributed mainly to volume growth as well as the Corporation's continued
investment in its distribution infrastructure such as RGBs, plastic cases and in-store refrigeration
equipment. These increases in 8&D cost were offset by the savings on personnel, rental and utilities
as a result of the rationalization of a number of its sales offices, as well as the effect of change in the
estimnated useful life of its marketing equipment from 5 vears to 7 years.

General & administrative expenses decreased by 4.2% vs. year ago level. General and administrative
©xpenses as a percentage over net sales decreased from 5.0% to 4.4% of net sales. Significant cost
savings were realized due to prudent cost management.

Results of Operations for the fiscal year 2008 versus 2007

For fiscal year 2008, the Corporation achieved an EBITDA margin of 15%, EBIT margin of §% and
Net Income margin of 6%. The corresponding numbers for fiscal year 2007 are 18%, 12% and 8%
respectively. This decline in margins can be attributable to adverse weather condition in the peak
selling months, as well as incrcase in the competiion in the tmarket place.

Revenues were driven by revenue growth in NCBs by 20%. This is in keeping with the increasing
consumer preference for beverages associated with health and wellness. Asa response to increasing
health awareness in the Philippines, the Corporation expanded and will continue to expand its range
of NCB products. During the year, it entered the energy category by launching brand Sting in both
slim can and returnable glass packs. It also entered the vitamin water scgment by launching Propel in



two flavors. Notwithstanding a crowded and declining CSD market in the Philippines, it maintained
an almost flat volume growth in the CSD ° revenues.

The intensified competition from a crowded CSD market along with a fragmented and relatively
young NCB market, as well as the skyrocketing double digit inflation which significantly affected
consumner buying power and spending during the usual peak months of March to June put a lot of
pressure on the Corporation and the beverage industry as a whole to lower its retail prices. In line
with its strategy to make NCB available at affordable packaging, the average NCB price went down
by 5% on account of a shift in mix, while the CSD price remained larpely unchanged.

In spite of a very challenging year, ie. spiralling fuel cost, adverse weather conditions, stiff
competition all causing undue pressure on revenues and costs, cost of goods sold increased mainly in
line with vohume growth while gross profit margin remained largely unchanged. Operating expenses
as a ratio to net sales increased from 20.6% to 24.2% principally due to additional one-time
marketing investment incurred in the 2nd quarter of fiscal year 2008, depreciation and amortization
of additional investment in capital expenditure and distribution infrastructure in line with the strategy
of growing NCB and maintaining CSD market share amidst a highly competitive industry. This led
to a lower

earning after tax margin (from 7.8% to 5.9% of net sales).

Guided by a corporate strategy to grow NCB portfolio and a reflection of the great opportunities it
makes from this market, the Corporation continued to invest in expanding approaching capacity
constraints in production facilities. At the same time, as part of the strategy to incrcase the reach of
the distribution network, it invested in distribution infrastructure such as RGBs, plastic cases, and in-
store refTigeration equipment. Philippine Financial Reporting Standards require the depreciation and
amortization of capital expenditure investments in production capacity, RGBs, and powered coolers
investment over their estimated useful lives for purposes of presenting these expendijtures in the
profit and loss statement.

In keeping with this strategy, the Corporation also invested in additional sales and distribution staff
and other assoclated costs such as paliet expenses for the botiles and plastic shells, vehicles, freight
for transporting powered coolers, among other things. Aecordingly, depreciation and amortization
chargeable to cost of sales increased by 16% while depreciation and amortization chargeable to
selling and distribution increased by 27.6%. Furthermore, cost of goods sold increased from 67.9%
to 68.4% as a percentage of net sales, while selling and distributior expenses increased from 12.4%
to 14.1% of net sales,

General and administrative expenses as a percentage of net sales increased from 4.5% to 5.0%
mainly because of the additional lease expense and pension expenses taken up in accordance with the
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, as well as regular salary rate increase in fiscal year 2008.
Marketing expense as a percentage of Net Sales was up from 3.6% to 5.1% on account of the one-
time increase in expenditures incurred in the 2™ quarter of fiscal year 2008.

Financial Condition and Liguidity

For the fiscal year 2009, the Corporation has strong operating cash flows, i.e., net cash provided by
operating activities are substantially more than the net cash used in investing activities.

The Corporation's operations are cash intensive. This capability to generate cash is one of its
greatest strengths. With its liquidity, the Corporation has substantial financial flexibility in varying
operating policy in response to market demands, in meeting capital expenditures through internally-



generated funds and in providing the Corporation with a strong financial condition that gives it ready
access 1o financing alternatives (refer to Note 4 of the Audited Financial Statements for a detailed
discussion on

the Corporation’s revolving credit facilities as of 20 June 2009,

Credit sales have increased over the past three years from 48% of total sales in 2007 and 62% in
2008 to 68% in 2009. This reflects a shift from a direct distribution mode to a more efficient model
of fostering partnership with distributors and multi-route Entreprencurial Distribution System
contractors as well as increase in Modemn Trade business. Liquidity has remained healihy, in fact
collection periods have improved from 32 days in 2007 and 30 days in 2008 to just 27 days in 2009,
Inventory days have decreased from 11 days in 2007 and 12 days in 2008 to just 10 days in 2009,
reflecting a more efficient inventory and production management. Trade payable days have
remained at manageable levels,

Decrease in current assets from P2,485 miltion as of June 2008 to 2,293 millicn as of June 2009
were due to decrease in cash and cash equivalents by B177 million, decrease i accounts due from
related parties by 2109 million and prepayments & other current assets by P41 million. This was
offset by increases in receivables of B106 million and inventories of P25 million. Both increase in
receivables and inventories were in line with increase in volume.

Increase in current liabilities from 2,227 million as of June 2008 to 2,345 million as of June 2009
is mainly due 1o increase in accounts payable & accrued expenses by P58 million as well as increase
in tax liabilities by B156 million.

Total assets increased from P7,983 million as of June 2008 to P8,562 million as of June 2009 mainly
due to the additional investments in bottles and cases and property, plant and equipment in support of
the expansion program and volume growth. Total liabilities increased from B2,703 million as of
Jume 2008 to P2,852 million as of June 2009 due to similar factors stated in increasc in current
lisbilitigs. Total equity increased from B5,27% million to B5,709 million on ascount of net income of
2300 million for the year less dividends of P369 million paid during the vear.

Material Commitments for Capital Expenditures

Historically, the Corporation has sourced funding for capital expenditures essential to product
innovation initiatives and maintaining operational capabilities through internally-generated funds and
long-term borrowings. In recent ycars, it has met these requirements substantially out of operating
cash flow, and has incurred only short-term debt to assist with temporary liquidity requirements. ‘In
Tanvary 2008, it had embarked on an IPO, with net proceeds of approximately P1.2 billion, to fund
the expansion of NCB business. The Corporation has since completed all the expansion projects of
Cebu, San Fernando and Iloflo listed under this commitment. Capital expenditure for fiscal year
2009 amounted to P1.8 billion, 2175 million lower than the previous year's level. In addition to
maintaining a level of ongoing capital expenditures broadly consistent with that incurred in recent
periods, the Corporation expects to use the net proceeds received from the TPO offering to complete
the remaintng expansion projects lined up.

Factors that may Impact Corporation’s Operations / Seasonality Aspects
Sales and profitability are affected by the overall performance of the Philippine economy, the natural

seasonality of salcs, the competitive environment of the beverage market in the Philippines, as well
as changes in cost structures, among other fagtors.



sales volumes are also affected by the weather, generally being higher in the hot, dry months from
March through June and lower during the wetter monsoon months of July through October. In
addition, the Philippines is exposed to risk of typhoons during the monsoon period. Typhoons
usually result in substantially reduced sales in the affected area, and have, in the past, interrupted
production at the plants in affected areas. While these factors lead to a natural seasonality in sales,
unseasoniable weather could also significantly affect sales and profitability compared to previous
comparable periods. Sales during the Christmas/New Year holiday period in late December tend to
be higher as well.

The Fhilippine CSD market experienced stagnant or declining sales volume growth due to the
matunity of the market. On the other hasd, the Philippine NCB market is growing due to increasing
consumer preference for beverages associated with health and weliness, in particular juices, iced
teas, sports drinks and water. The CSD and NCB markets are both highly competitive. The actions
of competitors as well as the Corporation’s own continuous efforts on pricing, marketing,
promotions, and new product development affect sales. Some of the smalier competitors have lower
cost bases than the Corporation and price their products lower than ours. Thus, in addition to the
cost of producing and distributing our beverages, sales prices are greatly affected by the availabili

and price of competing brands in the market, '

All of the Corporation’s sales are denominated in Philippine pesos. However, some of the
significant costs, such as purchases of packaging materizls are denominated in United States dollars.
Some of other costs, which are incurred in Philippine pesos, can also be affected by fluctuations in
the exchange rate between the Philippine pesc and United States dollars. As a result, movements in
the exchange rate between Philippine pezos and other currencies can have a significant effect on the
results of operations,

The business requires a significant supply of raw materials and energy. The cost and supply of these
materials could be adversely affected by changes in the world market prices on sugar, crude oil,
aluminum, tn, PET resins, among others. Although dirsct purchases of fuel are relatively small as a
proportion of total costs, the Corporation is exposed to fluctuations in the price of oil through the
dependence on freight and delivery services. Changes in materials prices generally affect the
competitors as well.

Margins differ between beverage products and package types and sizes. Excluding packaging,
production cosis are siiilar across the range of carbonated beverages, but vary between non-
carbonated beverages. Packaging costs vary, with RGBs being less expensive than PET, aluminum
cans or non-returnable glass. The incremental cost of producing larger-sized serves in the same
package type is proportionately lower than the increased volume, creating opportunities to achieve
higher margins where custotners perceive value in terms of volume.

As a result of the factors discussed above, the margins the Corporation earns on the products can be
substantially different, and the margins can change in both absolute and relative terms from period to
period. While the Corporation attempts to adjust its product and package mix to maximize
profitability, changes in consumer demand and the competitive landscape can have a significant
impact on mix and therefore profitability.

The Corporation is also subject to credit risk, liquidity risk and various market risks, including risks
from changes in commodity prices, interest rates and currency exchange rates (please refer to Notes
to Fiscal Year 2009 Audited Financial Statements, Note 4 on Financial Risk Management and Note
23 on Financial Instruments for the detailed discussion).



The Corporation is not aware of any events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation
that is material to the Corporation, including any default or acceleration of an obligation.

To the Corporation’s knowledge, there are no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements,
obligations (including contingent obligations), and other rclationships of the Company with
unconsolidated entities or other persons created during the reporting period.

To the Corporation's knowledge, there are no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangement,
obligations (including contingent obligations), and other relationship of the Company with
unconsolidated entities or other persons created during the reporting period.

Significant Elements of Income or Loss that did not arise from Continuing Operations

Pleasc refer to the Stetements of Income in the Audited Financial Stitements for details of net
finance and other income (expenses).

VL CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Corparation’s Manual on Corporate Governance (“Manual”), which was adopted on 21 June
2007, details the standards by which it conducts sound corporate governance that is coherent and
consistent with relevant laws and regulatory rules, and constantly strives to create value for its
stockholdcrs.

Compliance with the Manual’s standards is monitored by the Corporation’s Compliance Officer.
Ultimate responsibility rests with its Board of Directors, which also maintains three (3) standing
committecs apart from the Executive Committee, each charged with oversight into specific areas of
its buziness activities.

Executive Comimiites

The Executive Committee of the Board s respomsible for developing and monitoring the
Corporation’s risk management policies. The Executive Committee reviews the detailed finaneial
and operating performance of ithe Corporation every month and reviews progress against the relevant
Annual Operating Plan and Operating Targets, monitors the Corporation’s progress against key
initiatives, pricing strategies and plans, sales and marketing plans, capital expenditure planning and
key decisions on organization structure and people.

Based on the Manual, the Executive Committee shall be composed of at least five members, namely,
the President-Chief Exccutive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, and such other directors.

-~

The incumbent Chairman and members of the Executive Committee are as follows: Messrs. Micky
Yong (Chairman), Sunil D*Souza, James Eng Jr., Tsang Cho Tai (Allan Tsang), Qasim Khan, and
Partha Chakrabarti (CFO).

Audit Committee
The Corporation’s Audit Committee is responsible for assisting the Board in its fiduciary

responsibilities by providing an independent and objective assurance to the management and

10



shareholders of the Corporation of the continuous improvement of the Corporation’s risk
management systems and business operations, and the proper safeguarding and use of its resources
and assets. The Audit Committee provides a general evaluation of and assistance in the overall
improvement of the Corporation’s risk management, control and governance processes.

Based on the Manual, the Audit Committee must be comprised of at least three directors, preferably
with accounting and financial background. Two of the members must be independent directors,
including the Chairman of the committee. The Audit Committee reports to the Board and is required
to meet at least once every three months. '

The incumbent Chairman and members of the Audit Committee are as follows. Messrs. Oscar S.
Reyes (Chairman), John L. Sigalos, Tsang Cho Tai (Allan Tsang), and Rafacl M. Alunan I11.

Compensation and Remuneration Commirtee

The Corporation’s Compensation and Remuneration Committee is responsible for objectively
recommending a formal and transparent framework of remuneration and evaluation for the members
of the Board and its key executives.

Based on the Manual, the Compensation and Remuneration Committes must be comprised of at least
three members, including one independent director. The Compensation and Remuneration
Committee reports to the Board and is required to meet at least once each vear.

The mncumbent Chairman and members of the Compensation and Remuneration Committee are as
follows: Messrs. James Eng Jr. (Chairman), Micky Yong, John L. Sigalos and Rafael M. Alunan 111

Nomination Comitiftee

The Corporation’s Nomination Committee is responsible for providing shareholders with an
independent and objective evaluation of and assurance that the members of the Board are competent
and wil! foster the Corporation’s long-term sucuess and secure its competitiveness,

Based on the Manual, the Nomination Committee must be comprised at least three members,
including one independent director. The Nomination Committee reports to the Board and is required
1o meet at least once each year. :

The incumbent Chairman and members of the Nomination Committee are as follows: Messrs.,
Micky Yong (Chairman), James Eng Jr., John L. Sigalos and Rafael M. Alunan T11.

For purposes of evaluating compliance with the Manual, the Corporation has adopted the self-zating
form prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC™). The Cotporation has
complied with its Manual through the election of two (2) independent directors to the Corporation’s
Board; the constitution of the Audit, Compensation and Remuneration, and Nomination Committees
pursuant to its By-laws and the election of the Chairman and members of such commitiees, which
include the independent directors; the conduct of regular meetings of the Board of Directors and the
varjous committees of the Board above stated; adherence to the written Code of Conduct prepared by
the Corporation’s Human Resources Department; and adherence to applicable accounting standards
and disclosure requirements,

i1



The Corporation adheres to a business plan, budget and marketing plan. Management prepares and
submits to the Executive Committee of the Board and to the Board, on a regular basis, financia! and
operational reports which enable the Board and Management to assess the effectiveness and
efficiency of the Corporation.

While the Corporation has fulfilled its corporate governance obligations and there has been no
deviations from the Manual as of date, it continues to evaluate and review its Manual to ensure that
best practices on corporate governance are being adopted.
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REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES)
) $.8.

UNDERTAKING

I, PARTHA CHAKXABARTI, of legal age, Indian, Chief Financial Officer of
Fepsi-Cola Products Philippines, Inc. (the “Corporaticn™), and with office address at Km.
29 National Road, Timasan, Muntinlupa City, being duly sworn in accordance with law,
hereby updertake to submit to the Securities and Exchange Commnussion the Annual
Audited Financial Statements of the Corporation as of 30 June 2009 duly filed and
- received by the Bureau of Internal Revenue no later than October 15, 2009.

This Undertaking is being issued. in connection with the filing of the Annual

Audited Financial Statements of the Corporation as of 30 June 2009 as un
exhibit/attachment to the Corporation’s 8EC Form 17-A.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, I have hereunto affixed my signature ths

SEP 7 7 7609 in Makati City.

PARTHA CHAKRABARTI
Chief Financial Officer

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this SEP 7 7 2009
in Makati City, affiant having exhibited to me his Passport No. 21751780 issued on
February 26, 2008 in Manila City and expiring on February 26, 2018.

Doc. No. 2375
Page No. < :
Book No. ;
Sertes of 2009,

BTTY. CELERING T, GREGIA HI
Notary Public

Commission No. 07-029
‘ : Unm December 31, 200‘* ;. L
Coh Km 29 Nationaf Rd.: Tundsan; Alipa Gty
S P b IBPLRN: @4583 May o el
o PTR No. 0104302; uj (3/2008: fmnimmw S '
- Attofney's RollNG 31458 0 { sre [

“:'vun-u;-..,_
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Pepsi-Cola Products Philippines, Inc.
Km, 2%, National Road

Tunasan, Muntinlupa City

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Pepsi-Cola Products Philippines, Inc,,
which comprise the balance sheets as at June 30, 2009 and 2008, and the statements of income,
statements of changes in equity and statements of cash tlows for each of the three years in the
period ended JTune 30, 2009, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
expianatory notes.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statcments
in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, This responsibility inclodes:
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statenients that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or emor; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policics; and makmg accounting
egtimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors® Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.
‘We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain andit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors ‘
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial |
statements, whether due to fraud or crror. In making those risk assessments, the auditors congider
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair prescntatmn of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that ate appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control..
An audit also includes cvaluating the appropriateness of accountm‘% policieg1med and the-
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by managemcnt as well. as'f}"

presentatmn of the financial statements e ‘;3 . 5:

o

r..- hfr:,

We. bc::laeve that the aucht ev:demca we: have obtamed is sufficient d appmpriate‘to pfowde

bams for our audit opinion.

-.
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fvianebat Sanagustrn & Cu cemftad pubhc aa:cruntunts. 2 pm{asslomi partnarship
astablished under Philippine law, is a member firm of the KFMG network of independent
member firms affiliated with XPM®G Intarnational, a Swiss coopefative.
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Opinion

I our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all materiai respects, the financial
position of Pepsi-Cola Products Philippines, Inc. as of June 30, 2009 and 2008, and its financial
performance and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended June 30, 2099, in

accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards,

AGUSTIN & CO., CPAs
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EMERALD A E C. BAGNES

Partner

CPA License No. 0083761

SEC Accreditation No. 0312-AR-1

Tax Identification Mo. 102082332

BIR Accreditation Mo. 08-001987-12-2007
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PERPSI-COLA PRODLICTS PHILIPRINES, INC.

Krn. 22 National Road, Tunasan, Munttniupa City 1773 Philippines
Tel. No.: (832) B50-7901 Fax No.: (632) 850-7928
Wabsite | www.pepsiphilippines.com

STATEMENT DFl MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCTIATL STATEMENTS

The management of PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC. is responsible for
all information and representations contained in accompanying financial statements, which

- comprise the balance sheets as at June 30, 2009 and 2008, and the statements of income,

statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended June 30, 2009. The financial statements have been prepared in conformity
with Philippine Finanecial Reporting Standard and reflect amounts that are based on the best
estimates and informed judgment of management with an appropriate consideration to
materiality. ‘

In this regard, management maintains a system of accounting and reporting which provides
for the necessary internal controls to ensure that transactions are properly authorized and

- recorded, assets are safeguarded agawnst unautherized use or disposition and labilides are
* recognized. The management likewise disclose to the Company®s audit committee and to its

external auditor: (3) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of intemnal controls

. that could adversely affect its ability o Tecord, process and report financial data; (ii)

material weaknesses in the intémal controls; and (jif) any fraud that involves management

- or ather employees who exercise significant roles in internal controls.

" The Board of Directors reviews the financial statements before such statements are

approved and submitted to the stockholders of the company., .

- Manabat Sanagustin & Co. CPAs, the independent auditors appointed by the stockholders,

PEPS] | o8 | 2

has examined the financial statements of the Company in accordance with Philippine

~ Standards on Auditing and has expressed its opinion on the faimess of presentation upon

completion of such examination, in its report to the Board of Directors and Stockholders.

MICKY YONG
Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board -

N s S T

PARTHA CHAKRABARTI
Chief Financial Officer :
H
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SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TQ before me in the City of MUNTIN LUPA CITY

this __ th day of SEP 7 7 2080 by:

Competent
Name Evidence of |dentity Date/Place lssued
Micky Yong Passpori No.S06034791 April 26, 2001/Singapore
Partha Chakrabarti Passport No, Z1751780 Feb. 26, 2008/ Manila

who have satisfactorily proven their identity to me through the above identificaticn, that they
are the same person. who personally signed the foregoing mstrumant before me and
acknowtedged that they executad the same,

ATTY. CELERINO T. GREGIA H
Notary Public

- Commission No. 07-029

Until December 31, 2009

Km. 29 National Rd., Tunasan, Muntiniupa Gity
IBF LRN: 04583; May 12, 2063; listlo
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PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC.

BALANCE SHEETS

(Amounts in Thousands)

June 30
Note 2009 2008
ASSETS
Curient Assets ' ‘
Cash and cash equivalents 3 P413,088 . P590.326
Receivables - net ] 087,965 - 882075
Inventories 711 703,963 678,933
Due from associates - net 14 80,737 " 84,877
Due from a related party 14 ‘ 26,717 135,652
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 71,928 113,252
Total Current Assets 2,293,398 2,485,115
Noncurrent Assets |
Investments in associates 8 527,723 525,502
Bottles and cases - net 8 11 2441188 - 1972654
Property, plant and equipment - net 10, 11 3,156,001 2,861,439
Other noneurrent assets - net . 143,041 138,030
Total Noncurrent Assets 6,268,863 5,497 654
8,562,261 I'7.982.76%
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY |
Current Liahilities
Notes payable 7,919, 11 P50,000 P147,100
Agcounts payable and accrued expenses 713 14, 24 2,138,350 2,075,994
Income tax pavable 156,456 -
‘Total Corrent Liabilities 2344836 2,227,094
Noncurrent Liabilities ‘
Accrued retirement cost - net of current portmn ‘ 24 131,830 186,577
Deferred tax liabilities - net 13 375,723 . 289712
Total Noncurrent Liabilities ‘ . 507,553 476,289
Total Liabilities ‘ ' - 2,852,389 ' 2 703 383
Equity . | ‘“ ?
Capital stock

Additional paid-in capital 7,36 ; 1 197 369
Effect of dilution of ownership - EUTULOE8Y T T (1,018)
Retaincd eaimings : 26 | 0aTE [3,959,455 1 3,528,969

Total Equity Lo 15,700,972 . . ..5,279,386

b ‘ e B ‘ hf—‘ﬁf?iéf,giﬁl

See Notes to the Financial Statements. © |




PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC.

STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(Amounts in Thousands)

- "Years Ended Junc 30

Note 2009 2008 2007

NET SALES 1522 PI4232,045 PI2,980,886  P12,916,212
COST OF GOODS |

SOLD 14,16, 19,20, 24,27 10,042,738 . 8.874,106 8,766,162

GROSS PROFIT . 4,189,307 4,106,780 4,150,050
OPERATING EXPENSES

Selling and distribution 14, 17, 19, 20, 24, 27 1,902,574 1,830,302 1,599,571
General and

administrative 14, 18 (9, 20 24, 27 620,850 4648.080 587,081
Marketing expenses 14 520,916 664,935 468,201
3,044,340 3,143,324 2,654,943
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS 1,144,967 963,456 1,435,107
FINANCE AND OTHER |
INCOME (EXPENSE) :
Interest income R 514 17234 22,581 18,056
Equity in net eamings of S
associates T -8 2,221 20,028 6,792
Interest expense Lo 1 (21,97%) {35,713) (52,439
Orther income - net ‘ _ 38,979 © 30,567 - 52,117
' ‘ 36,4062 37,463 24,520
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX ' 1,181,429 1,000,919 1,519,627
INCOME TAX EXPENSE ‘ - 13 381,739 240,222 518.24]
NET INCOME 3 : T P799,690 P760,697 71,001,386
Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share 21 PO.22 PG2R2 PO.30

See Notos ko the Fingreial Stataments.




~ PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
{Amounts in Thousands)

Years Ended June 30
~ Note 2009 2008 2007
CAFPITAL STOCK
Balance at beginning of year P554,006 P496,948 P496,948
Issuance during the year 25 - 57,118 -
Ralance at end of vear . 554,066 554,066 - 496,948

ADDITIONAL PAID-TN CAPITAL :
Balance at beginning of year 1,197,369 59,473 59,473

Issuance during the year 23 1,275,622 -
Transaction cost on initial public '

offering 25 - (137,726) -
Ralance at end of year 1,197,369 1,197,369 39,473
EFFECT OF DILUTION OF ‘

OWNERSHIP (1,018) {1,018) (1.018)
REVALUATION INCREMENT ON :

LAND : ‘
Ralance at beginning of year - - 274,569
Transfer io retained eamings : - - (274,569)
Balance at end of year - - Lo
RETAINED EARNINGS )
Balance at beginning of year . 3,528,969 2,768,272 1,892 317
MNet income for the vear 799,690 760,697 1,001,386
Transfer from revaluation increment ‘

on land ‘ - - ‘ 274,569
Dividends declared 26 (369,204) - : (400,000)

Ralance at end of year I 3,959,455 3,528,969 2,768,272

P5,709,872 F5,279,386 3,323,675

See Notes to the Flaancial Seqtemens.
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PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PINLIPPINES, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
{Amounts in Thousands)

"Years Ended June 30
_Note 2009 2008 2007
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES .
Ineome before income tax P1,181,429 P1,000,919 P1,519,627
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization 19 1,025,824 969,611 813,537
Allowance for probable losses in
values of bottles and cases,
machinery and equipment, idle
assets, impairment losscs,
inventory chsolescence and
others provisions - net 679 132,704 73,383 25222
Retirement cost 24 34,791 67,708 67.276
Interest expense 21,972 35,713 52,439
Interest income {17,234 (22,581 {18,050}
Equity in net earnings of associates 5 (2,221) . (20,028) (6,792)
Gain on disposal of property and
equipment {1,841) {1,527 {(759)
Operating income before working
capital changes 2,375,424 2,103,198 2,452 500
Changes in operating assets and
liabilities: "
Decrease (increasc) in:
Receivables 6 (160,139 (106,198) {165,032}
Inventories . 7 (68,218) (81,106) (115,445)
‘Due from a related party 108,935 (125,1635) 3,923
" Prepaid expenses and other
current assefs 41,324 (18,309) (12,370)
Increase (decrease) in accounts
___ payable and acerued expenses 12 17,366 (148.050) 424,502
Cash generated (tom operations 2,314,692 1,624,370 2,588,078
Interest received o 18,661 22,035 17,934
Income taxes paid (139,272) (215,004) (275,758)
Contribution to plan assets 24 (48,000} {54,000) (62,000)
Interest paid (32,490) (39,957) (65,988)

Net cash provided by operating activities 2,122,991 1,337,334 2,202,266

- F arward

i




Years Ended June 30

Note 2009 2008 2007

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING

ACTIVITIES
Procecds from dispogal of property

and equipment 10 P5,370 P17,681 P5,269
Net additions to:

Property, plant and equipment i0 (833,864) (1,309,518) (218,903

Bottles and cases 9 (994,669) (693,180) (697,858)

Investments in associates 8 - - (81,015)
Net increase in amounts due from

associates & (4,860) (4,350) (632)
Tncrease in other noncurrent assets {5,902) 386 (88.646)
Net cash used in investing activities (1,833,925)  (1,980,481) - (1,781,787)
CASH FLOWS FROM

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash dividends paid 26 (369204) . (400,000) (99.367)
Net proceeds from (repayments of):
Notes payable ' 11 (97,100) 08,500 -

Long-term debt. - - (283,333) (166.667)
Procecds from issuance of shares of stocks - 1,185,014 -
Net cash provided by (used in) financing

activities - {466,304) 610,181 {266,034)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN o

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (177,238 (41,944) 154,443
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 590,326 632,272 477 827
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT END OF YEAR 5 P413,088 P590,326 P632,272

Seg Notes tp the Financial Statemenis.,




PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILITPTINES, INC,

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amawnts in Thousands, Except Number of Shares and Par Value per Share and When
Otherwise Stated)

1. Reporting Entiiy

Pepsi-Cola Products Philippines, Inc. (the “Company™) was repisiered with the
Ph:hppme Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on March 8, 1989, primarily to
engage in manufacturing, sales and distribution of carbonated soft-drinks (CSD) and non-
carbonated beverages (NCB) to retail, wholesale, restaurants and bar trades. The
registerad office address and principal place of business of the Company 15 Km. 25,
National Road, Tunasan, Muntinlupa City.

2. Basis of Preparation

Siatement of Compliance

The financial statements of the Compeny have been prepared in accordance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). PFRS includes statements natmed
PFRS and Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS), including Philippine Interpretations
from International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC), lssued by the
Financial Reporting Standards Council.

The financial statements of the Company as of and for the years ended June 30, 2009 and
2008 and the statement of income, stateiment of changes in equity, and statement of
cashflows for the year ended June 30 2007 were approved and authorized for issze by
the Company’s Board of Directors (BOD) on September 22, 2009.

Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis.

Functional and Prescntation Currency

The financial statements .are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates. The financial statements are presented in
Philippine peso, which is also the Company’s functional currency and all values are
rounded 1o the nearest thousand, except number of shares and par value peér share and
when otherwise indicated.

Use of Estimates and Judgments
The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with PFRS x‘requtreﬂ

management to make estimates and judgments that- affesct the application. of accounting
policies and the amounts reported in the ﬁnanﬁ:ml Statements. The‘ ‘Estimates :and
judgments used in the accompanying financial stﬁf’tcthenfs‘, Airé-based.on; .management’s

evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as of the. p;late: of thc Cumpanyfs ﬁnaﬂcml
statements. Actual results may differ from these est mates TE A j

Estimates and underlying asﬁumptmns are reviewed on ag’ HEOINg-hasis
historical experiences and other factors, includingfexpeot lﬁﬁﬁ;-,éﬂfut'ﬁi‘é“f v‘e‘;ﬁtgi_l:wlﬂt are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accountmg estimates are
recogmzed in the permd in which the estimates are revised and in’any futore penods

affected.




In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical
. judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the
amonnts recognized in the financial statements are as follows:

. : Leases
The Company has entered into various lease agreements as lessee. The Company has

determined that the lessor retains all significant risks and rewards of cwnership of these
properties which are leased out under operating lease agreements. Rent expense
pertaining to these leased properties amounted to P1353 million in 2009, P162 million in
2008 and P113 million in 2007 (see Notes 16, 17 and 18).

Funetional Currency

Based on the economic substance of the underlying circumstances relevant to the
Company, the functional currency has been determined to be the Philippine peso. It is the
currency that mainly influences the sales price of goods and the cost of providing these
goods.

Contingencies !
The Commpany is currently involved in various legal proceedmgs. The estimate of the
probable costs for the resolution of these claims has been developed in consultation with
outside counse! handling the Company's defense relating to these matters and is based
upon an analysis of potential results. The Company currently does not believe that these

_ proceedings will have a material adverse effect on its financial statements. It is possible,
however, that future results of operations could be materially affected by changes in the
estimates or in the effectiveness of the strategies relating to these proceedings
(see Note 27).

Estimating Allowance for Impairment Losses on Receivables

The Company maintains an allowance for impairment losses at a level considered
adequate to previde for potential uncollectible receivables. The Conipany performs
regular review of the age and status of these accounts, designed to identify accounts with
objective evidence of impairment and provides these with the appropriate allowance for
impairment losses. The review is accomplished using a combination of specific and
collective assessment approaches, with the impairment losses being determined for each
tisk grouping identified by the Company. The amount and timing- of recorded expenses
for any period would differ if the Company made different judgments or utilized different
methodologies. An increase in the allowance for impairment losses would increasc
recorded operating expenses and decrease current assets. As of June 30, 2009 and 2008,
allowance for impairment losses on receivables amounted to P150 million and P1062
million, respectively. Receivables, net of allowance for impaimment losses amounted to
P988 million and P882 million as of June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively (see Note 6).
No allowance for impairment losses is necessary for the Company’s due from a related

party and due from associates as of June 30, 2009 am;i‘. 2008, Y
e : P Laney i

Estimating Net Realizable Value of Inventories S i *' j

In determining the net realizable value of inventorie et Company considers: nxfzpté)ry

obsolescence based on specific identification and las determiried by ‘iaiagement for
inventories estimated to be unsaleable in the futuri. Thq;@omﬂzﬁ"?'?ﬁdﬁﬁﬁgf’th@ .cusf af

inventories to a recoverable value at a love! considercd adequate to, r@ﬂ’eg:’gmhrké"t decfine ..
. . AL A AL T T
in value of the recorded inventory. The Company reviews, oil d Eotitinnous -basis;-the

" jdentify inventories which are to-be written down to net realizable valués. The carrying

 amount of inventories was reduced to'its net realizable valie by Pi§ million and P9
million in 2009 and 2008, respectively. The net realizable value of inventories amounted
to P704 million and P679 million as of June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively
- (see Npta e TR Ly R

Rt S Ll [
R A

“.2;-

product movement, changes in consumer demands and introduction of new products fo ~. ")



Estimating Useful Lives of the Excess of Cost of Comtainers over Deposit Values
The excess of the acquisition costs of the returnable bottles and cases over their deposit

values is deferred and amortized over their estimated useful lives (EUL) principaily
determined by their historical breakage and trippage. A reduction in the EUL of excess of
cost over deposit value would increase the recorded amortization and decreasc
noncurrent assets. As of June 30, 2009 and 2008, accumulated amortization of excess of
cost over deposit values of returnable bottles and cases amounted to P3.2 billion and P2.7
billicn, respectively. The carrying amounts of bottles and cases amounted to F2.4 billion
and P2.0 billion as of June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively (see Note 9).

Estimating Allowance for Unusable Containers

An allowance for unusable containers is maintained based on specific identification and
as determined by management 10 cover bottles and shells that are no longer considered fit
for use in the business, obsolete or:in excess of the Company’s needs. Ag of
Tune 30, 2009 and 2008, allowance for unusable containers amounted to P17 miltion and
F7 millien, respectively (see Note 9). ‘

" Estimating Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment

The Company reviews annually the EUL of property, piant and equipment based on the
period over which the assets are expeeted to be available for use and updates those
expectations if actual results differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear
and technical or commercial obsolescence. It is possible that future results of operations
could be materially affected by changes in these estimates brought about by changes in
the factors mentioned. A reduction in the EUL of property, plant and equipment would
increase the recorded deprecnatmn and . amertization expenses and dscrease noncurrent
assefs,

The BUL are as follows:

*

Number of Years

—_—

Buildings and leasehold improvements 20 or term of the lease,

' whichever is shorter
Machinery and other equipment 3-10
Fumilure and fixtures - 10

As of Yune 30, 2009 and 2008, the camrying amounts of property, plant and equipment
armounted to P3.2 billion and P2.9 billion, respectively (see Note 10).

Estimating Allowance for Impairment Losses on Nonfinaneial Assets
The Company assesses impairment on property, plant and equipment and investments in
associates whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amounts of these assets may not be recoverable. The factors that the Company canmders
important which could ’mgger an 1mpatrment review in¢lude the following:

= significant underperfonnance rf:latwe to the expecte
{uture operating results; ‘ e

'
ERERE .

P [
* significant changes in the: manner of use of the a&qmrcdﬁsets ar thc‘ stra“regyfor
overall busmess aud r ‘ e

R s g,

= significant negatwe mdustxy or economic trends, "




If any impairment indicater exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated,
Determining the recoverable value of the assets requires ostimation of cash flows
expected to be generated from continued use and uliimate disposal of such assets. An
impairment loss i recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds ils
recoverable amount. Tmpairment losses would increase recorded operating expenses and
decrease the noncurrent assets. As of June 30, 2009 and 2008, none ol these impairment
indicators exist on the Company’s property, plant and equipment gnd investments in
associates. An impairment loss amounting to P15 million (included under “Selling and
Distribution Expenses” in the statements of income) was recognized for marketing
equipment (included as part of machinery and other equipment under “Property, plant
and equipment” account in the balance sheets) in fiscal year 2007. The related allowance
was fully written-off in fiscal year 2007. As of June 30, 2009 and 2008, the carrying
amounts of property, plant and equipment amounied to P3.2 billion and P2.9 biliion,
respectively (see Note 10). Investments in associates amounted to P528 million and
P526 million as of June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively (see Nole 8).

Estimating Realizability of Deferrved Tax Assets

The Company teviews the carrying amounts of deferred tax assefs at ¢ach balance sheet
date and reduces deferred tux assets fo the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to
be utilized. The Company's assessment on the recognition of deferred tax assets is based
on the forecasted taxable income of the subsequent reporting periods. This forecast is
based on the Company’s past results and fufure expectations on revenues and expenses.
The Company has no unrecognized deferred tax assels as of June 30, 2009 and 2008. As
of June 30, 2009 and 2008, the Company has net deferred tay liabilities amounting to
7376 million and P250 million, respectively (see Note 13). ‘

© Estimating Retirement Bencfits Liabiliny .
The deteimination of the retirement benefits liability and retirement benefits cost is
dependent on the selection-of certain assumptions used by the actuary in calculating such
amounts. Those assumptions include, among others, discount rates, expected returns on
plan assets and salary increase rate. Actual results that differ from the Company’s
assurnptions, subject to the 10% corridor test, are accumulated and amortized over future
periods and therefore,’ generally affect the recognized expense and recorded obligations
in such future periods. As of Tune 30, 2009 and 2008, the Company has unrecognized net
actuarial gains amounting to P7 million and P89 miltion, respectively (see Note 24).

3. .Significant Accounting Policies

The following explains the significant accounting policies which have been adopted in
the preparation of the financial statements:

-~

Adgpﬁnn of Interpretation and Amendments to Standard ‘

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those.of the previous financial year,
except for the following Philippine interpretation which bedame ‘sffectivé on1a Uﬁi"&"“ﬁéé
200% and amendments to existing standards which becamé'effestive.on July 1,200

o
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= Philippine Interpretation TFRIC-14, PAS 19 - The ﬁ?ﬁff'i:)'n»:d.fﬁeﬁnécﬂﬂ#{ﬁﬁ)‘ Hsoet]
Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction, prgmid;‘asmgmg_rﬁ _guidance o C
how to assess the limit in PAS 19, Employee Ben}ﬂrs, & flie dniduit of Ef}éﬁuxplu L
that can be recognized as an asset. It also explaind.how/ thé'péfision asset oz liabili '
may be affected: when' there is-a statutory or contractual miniiiii furiding .
requircment. The adoption of this interpretation did not have a significant impact on.

.. 'the Company’s finaticial statements. <. - .-~ =~ - R SN
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= Amendments to PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, and
PFRS 7,‘ Financial Instruments: Disclosures, which are effective beginning
July 1, 008, permit an entity to reclassify nonderivative financial assets, other than
those designated at fair vatue through profit or loss upon initial recognition, out of
the trading category in certain circumstances. The amendments also permit an entity
to transfer from the available-Tor-sale category to the loans and receivables category
a financial asset that otherwise would have met the definition of loans and
‘receivables, if the entity hvas the intention and ability to hold that financial asset for
the foreseeable future. The adoption of these amendments to the standards did not
have a significant effect on the Company’s financial statements.

New Standard, Revised Standard, Amendments 1o Standards and Interpretation Not Yet
Adopted

The following are the new standard, revised standard, amendments to standards and

interpretation which have been approved and are not yet effective and have not been

applied in preparing these hnancial statements:

v PFRS 8, Operaiing Segments. This will be effective for financial years beginning on
or after January 1, 2009 and will replace PAS 14, Segment Reporting. This PFRS
adopls a managernent approach In reporting segment information. The information
reported would be that which management uses internally for evaluating the
performance of operating segments and allocating resources to those segments. Tt is
required for adoption only by entities whose debt or equity instruments are publicly
traded, or are in the process of filing with the SEC for the purposes of issuing any
class of instrurnents in a public market. The requirements of fthe standard will be
applied in the Company’s financial statements upon iis adoption on July 1, 2609,

= Revised PAS 1, Presentation of Finaneinl Starements, The revised standard will be
effective for financial years beginning on or after January 1, 2089, The reviscd
standard .introduces “total comprehensive income” (i.e., changes in equity during a
period, other than those changes resulting from transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners), which is presented either in: (a) one statement (i.e., a statement
of comprehensive income); or (b) two statements (L.e., an incoms statement and a
statement beginning with profit or loss and displaying components of other
comprehensive incomes). Certain requirements are also required by revised PAS 1
that are not required by the original standard. The requirements of the revised
standard wiil bo included in the Company s financial statements upon its aduptmn an
Faly 1, 2009

= Improvemenrs to PFRS 2008 will be effective for financial years beginning on or
after beginning on or afier January 1, 2009, The improvements discusses 35
amendments and is divided into two parts: a) Part T.inclddés 24 afigndments ‘ﬂmt
result in accounting changes for presentation, rec@gmtlon of éasurement ;gurp?sag,
and b) Part IT includes 11 terminology or aclltmla! amendments thiat the Intematmnél
Accounting Standards Board expects to have cithtriiic 'of - ity minimal cffbcts cfn
accounting. The Company expects that the improvements standaréls w1ll zﬂﬂt have
significant impact on.the Company’s fi nanc:tal? statemen . its
Tuly 1,2009, . . ! oo

»  Amendments to BFRS 7, Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments. This = 1+
will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2000; These .-
amendments enhance’ disclosures over fair value measurements relating to financial
instruments, specifically in relation to disclosures over the inputs used in valuations . .
techniques and the uncertainty associated with such valuations and improves

. d1sclosures over llqmdlty risk to address current dwersnty 1in practme m how such -

w
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disclosure requirements are being interpreted and applied, proposing quantitative
disclosures based on how liquidity risk is managed and strengthening the relationship
between quantitative and qualitative liquidity risk disclosures. The requirements of
the amendments to standard will be included in the Company’s financial statements

upon its adoption on July 1, 2009.

=  Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-17, Distributions of Noncash Assets to Chwngrs, This
will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2009. This
interpretation prowdes gnidance on the accounting for non-reciprocal distributions of
non-cash assets to owners acting in their capac:nty as owners. It also applies to
digtributions in which the owners may elect to receive either the non-¢osh asset or a
cash alternative. The liability for the dividend payable is measured at the fair value of
the assets to be distributed. This interpretation is not expected to have any significant
impact on the Company s financial statements upon its adoption on July 1, 2009,

Financial Instruments.

Date of Recognition. The Company recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in
the balance sheets when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument., The Company determines the classification of its financial assets and
liabilities on initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this
designation at each balance sheet date. In the case of a regular way purchase or sale of
financial assets, recogmition and derecognition, as applicabie, is done using settlement
date accounting. Regular way purchases or sales of financial assets require delivery of
assets within the time frame generally established by regulations in the market place.

Initial Recognifion of Financial Instruments. Financial mstruments are recognized
initially at fair value, which is the fair value of the comsideration given (in case of an
asset) or received (in case of a liability). The fair value of the consideration given or
received is determined by reference to the transaction price or other market prices, If
such market prices are not reliably determinable, the fair value of the consideration is
estimated as the sum of all future cagh payments or receipts, discounted wsimg the
prevailing market rate of interest for similar instruments with similar maturities. The
inthal mezsurement of financial instruments, except for those designated at fair value
through profit and loss (FVPL), includes transaction cost.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company classifies its financial asscts in the
following categories: held-to-maturity (FITM) investments, available-for-sale (AFS)
financial assets, FVPL financial assets, and loans and receivables. Financial liabilities are
classified as financial liabilities at FVPL or other financial liabilities. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the investments are acquired and whether they are
queted in an active market. As of June 30, 2009 and 2008, the Company has no financial
assets and financial Ilabllltlas at FVPL, HTM mvestmg;mts and AFS f nancml assets

Cash and Cuash Eqmva!ems Cash includes cas]ﬁ Y "'hands_:and'm bﬂnkS‘.--J-‘- Cﬂ?;h
equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investme tsﬁni}ggt are, readily convemble jto
known amounts of cash with original maturities of ythree mcmths ot less' from datés xof

acquisition and that are subject to an insignificant rlslsé of chahge inrvalue, . .. !
Mol L i

Loans and Receivables. Loa,ns and receivables areaxmngerwatwemﬁnancml assets Wlth

fixed or determinable paymerits that aré not quoted in an active market. They are not .

entered into with the intention of immediate or short-term resale and are not designated
as AFS financial assets or fihancial asset at FVPL. Loans and reccivables are carried at
cost or amortized cost, lesé impairment. in value. Amortization is determined usmg the -,
" effective interest method,  Gains and losses are recognized in income when the loans and
i . creceivables are derecngmzed or impaired, as well as through amortization process. -




The Company’s trade and other receivables, due from associates and due from a related
party are included in this category.

Other Financial Lighilities. This category pertains to financial liabilities that are not held
for trading or not designated as at FVPL upon the inception of the habﬂﬂy These include
liabilities arising from operations or borrowings.

The financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and are subsequently carried
at amortized cost, taking into account the impact of applying the effective interest method
of amortization (or accretion) for any related premium, discount and any directly
attributable transaction costs.

Included in this category are the Coinpany’s notes payable and accounts payable and
accrued expenses that meet the above definition (other than liabilities covered by other
accounting standards, such as income tax payable and accme:d refitement cost).

Derecognition ¢f Financial Ingtruments
Financial Assets. A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part
of 2 group of similar financial assets) is derecognized when:

" the rights tc receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired,
= the Company retains the fght to receive cash flows from the financial asset, but has
assumed an obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party
under a ‘pass-through” arrangement; or
»  the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the ﬁnanclal asget
and either (2) has transferred substantizlly all the risks and rewards of the financial
asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained substant:ally all the risks and rewards
of the financial asset, bu( has transfzrred control of the financial asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from a financial asset
and has neither transferred -nor retained substantially ali the risks and rewards of the
financial asset nor transferred control of the financial asset, the financial asset is
recognized to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the finahcial asset.
Continning involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transfer of the
financial asset ie measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the financial
asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to
repay. : ‘

Financial Liabilities. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the
hablllty is discharged or cancelled or has expired.

When an emstmg financial liability is teplaced by anoﬂmr from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an emstlgﬁ liability are substantially
modified, such modification is treated as a derecognitich ot the carfying vﬁfﬁ&,ﬁf the
original Lability and the recognition of a new liability 4t.fair’ ‘_‘and any £ ultmg
difference is recopnized in the statements of income. :

Financial assets and financial liabilities arc offset and the net;,hﬂ}mlﬂ :
balance sheets if, and only if there is a currently enfojceablelepal-right qﬂ )gffs:c':i; the

. recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net%asm nr"T('S Mﬂﬂteﬂhw-‘
i ﬁnanc:]al asset and se:ttlc the ﬁnanmal habﬂ:ty snmultanemsly o - f - :

Offsetting Financial Instruments :

J . L




Inventorie
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost amd net realizable value. The cost of

inventories includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or
conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them 1o their existing location and
condition. In the case of manufactured inventories and work in process, cost inchides an
appropriate share of production overheads based on normal operating capacity. Net
realizable value of inventories other than spare parts and supplies, is the estimaied selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated cost of completion and seiling
expenses. For the spare parts and supplies, net realizable value is the estimated selling
price less cost to sell.

Investients in Assgciafes
Associates are ihose entitles in which the Company has significant influence, but not

control, over the financial and operating policies and whizh are neither subsidiaries por
joiat ventures. The financial statements include the Company’s share of the total
recognized earnings and losses of associates on an equity accounted basis, from the date
that significant influence commences nntil the date that significant influence ceases.
Distributions received from the associates reduce the carrying amount of the investments.
Income and expense resuiting from transactions bevween the Company snd the associates
are eliminated {0 the extent of the interest in the associates. When th= Company’s share
- of Josses exceeds the cost of the investment in an associate, the carrying amount of that

interest is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the

extent that the Company has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
" on behalf of the associate. . :

The Company’s investment includes goodwill that represents the excess of acquisition
cost of investment over the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the investee
comparies at the date of acquisition, nct of impanment in value, if any.

The financial statements of the associates are prepared for the same reporting period as
the Company’s financial statements.

Bottles and Cases : | :

Bottles and cases include raturnable glass bottles and cases stated at deposit values and
the excess of the acquisition costs of retumnable bottles and cases over their deposit
values. These are defermed and amortized using the siraight-line method over their
estimated useful lives (5 years for returnable bottles and 7 years for cases) determined
principally by their actual histotical breakage and trippage. An allowance is provided for
excess, unusable and obsolete returnable bottles and cases based on the specific
identification method,

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment ate carried at cost (which comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable cost in bringing the asset to \?6?125img“'&’éfﬂ@litio’n"’aﬂﬂ Jochtionfor
its intended use) less accumulated depreciation, amortization and impairmett losses, if
any. . ) : g T R LU

2 "
i !

k4
!

' il L L e
Subsequent costs that can be measured reliably are added tojthe carrying amount of the

asset when it i probable that future economic benefits assog’i}atgﬁ"'tw:i:tﬁf‘t}gé.ag* e wll ﬂOi}V
xpense in

i

to the Company. The cost of day-to-day servicing of %PE?SEHS.. recognized. as.
the period in which it iz incurred. Rt e e i bt e
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Construction in progress represents plant and equipment under construction and is state
at cost. This includes cost of construction and other direct cosis. Construction in progress
is not depreciated until such time that the relevant assets are completed and put inlo
operational use. '

Depreciation commences once the assois becomsz available for use. Depreciation is
computed on a straight-line basis over the EUL of the assets. Leasehold improvements
are amortized over the: EUL of the 1mprovements or the term of the lease, whichever is
shorter.

The EUL and depreciation and amomzahun methods are reviewed at each balance shes:
date to ensure that the period and deprematmn and amnortization methods are consistem
with the expected pattern of economic benefits from those asssts.

When an asset is disposed of, or is permanently withdrawn from use and ne futurc
econamic benefits are expected from its disposal, the cost and accumulated depreciation,
amortization and impairment losses, if any, are removed from the accounts and any
resulting gain or loss arising from the retiremeni or disposal is recogmzed in the
staterments of income.

Imnairment

Financial Assets

A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any
objective evidence that it is impaircd. A financial asset is consziderced to be impaired 1f
objective evidence indicates that one or more events have had a negative effect on the
estimated future cash flows of that asset.

An impairmeni loss in respect of a financial assct measured at amertized cost is
calenlated as the difference between its carrying amount, and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

Individually, significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis.
The remaining financial assets are assessed collectively 1n groups that share similar credit
risk characteristics. All impairment losses are recogmized in the statements of income.

Reversal of an impairment loss previously recognized is recorded wheri the decrease can
be objectively related to an event ocourring after the impairment event. Such reversal is
recognized in the statements of income. However, the increased carrying amount is only
recognized to the extent it does not exceed what the amortized cost would have been had
the impairment not been recognized.

Nonfiranecial Assets
The carrying amounts of the Company’s nonfinancial assets such as investments in
associates, bottles and cases, and property, plant and aqulpment are reviewed at cach
balance sheet date to determine whether there is any idication ot 1mpa1rment JIf-any-
such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is Fshmated L

;
;
5
: o
An impairment loss is recogmzcd in the statements oaf mcmme* whenever the carrymga
amount of an asset or ltS cash ganeratmg umt exceeds it recoveraHe amiount. © i
5

AL T, 2,

. The recovemble amount of i nonf“ nam::al asset is the ;E'
"1 costs to sell and its valiie in use.. The fair value less costé 1 ’s’.éll it tire-aniount-oblainable -
from the sale of the assét ifi ‘an arm’s length transaction.’ In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows ‘are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount

3 rate that reﬂects curmnt market assessments of the tu‘ne value of muney and the risks .




specific 10 the assct. For an asset that does not generats gash flows largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
uanit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that
{he asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impatrment loss had been
recognized. Reversals of impairment are recognized in the statements of income.

Capital Stock
Capital stock is classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of

shares are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effect.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Company and the revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue from the sale of
goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of
returns and discounts. Reverue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transfarred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable,
the associated costs and possible return of goods can be estimated reliably, and there is
no continuing involvement with the goods. Transfer of risks, and rewards of ownership
coincides with the delivery of the products to the customers.

Cost and Expense Recognition
Costs and expenses are recognized in the statements of income as they are incurred.

Advertising and Marketing Costs
Advertising and marketing costs are charged to operations in the year.such costs are
mecurred.

Finance Income and Expenses

Finance income comprises of interest income on bank deposits and money market
placements, dividend income and foreign currency gains. Interest income is recognized in
the statements of income as it accrues, using the effective interest method. Dividend
income is recognized on the date that the Company’s right to receive payment is
established.

Finance expenses comprise interest expense on borrowings and foreign currency losses.
All finance expenses are recognized in the statements of income a5 they accrue.

Leases ‘

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership is retained by
the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating {2ases are
recognized in the statements of income on a straight-ling basis ovei the term of the-lease.

R

Borrowing Costs ; ;‘ RaRp
Borrowing costs are generally expensed as incurred. Borrawing. costs, are.capitajized iff .
they are directly attributable to the acquisition or consij;ructitm' of &*qualifying as ,,t‘:ﬁ e
capitalization of borrowing costs (a) commences when the actiVitigi to prepare the assets .
are in progress and expenditures and borrowing costs are being incuired; (b “ﬁsﬂwﬂ_ur nde
during extended periods in which active development, iffrovermsnt-amd-eonstridtion. ol
the assets are interrupted; and (c) ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to;
prepare the assets are complete. These costs are amortized using the straight-line method’

. over the EUL of the related property, plant and equipment to which it is capitalizm?'v-‘ "

. .
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Provisions and Contingencies

A provision is a liability of vncertain timing or amount. It 15 recognized when the
Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event; it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
seitle the obligation; and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are revisited at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined
by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pretex rate that reflects the current
market assessment of the time value of money, and, where appropriate, the risks specific
to the liability. Where discounting is used, thie increase in the provision due to the
passage of time ig recognized as interest expense.

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statemenis. These are disclosed
unless the possibility of an outilow of resources embodying economic benelils is remote.
Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed when
an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Income Taxes
Income tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax

expense is recognized in the siatements of income except to the extent that 1t rclates to
items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in equity.

Current Tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using iax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years. '

Deferred Tax ‘ .

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax assets and
liabifities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to temporary
differences betwsen the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposcs and the amounts used for taxation purposes and the carryforward tax benefits of
the net operating loss carryover (NOLCO) and the excess of minimum corporate income
tax (MCIT) over the regular corporate income tax (RCIT). The amount of deferred tax
provided is based on the expected manner of realization or seitlement of the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities, uSing tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
halance sheet date. A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable
“ that future taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary
differenices and the carryforward  benefits of NOLCO and MCIT can be utilized.
Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related
tax benefit will be realized.

Retirement Plan ‘

The Company has a funded, noncontributory defined benefit retirement plan covering
substantially all of its regular and full time employees. Retirement costs are actuarially
determined using the projected unit credit method whidh-reflect-services. rendered by
employees to the date of valuation and incorporates assu M_Rjéggn__ﬁprémrhing' emp‘lp‘yées*‘“;’ :
projected salaries. Actuarial gains and losses that excbed 10% -of :the preater rofsthe ¢
present value of the Company’s defined benefit obligatiémr and fﬂl& fair .yalugpf :cht‘.j‘, plan g
assets are amortized over the expected average working liét.rés*“"ébf ‘the participating |
employees. ' ey i
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The defined benefit liability is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit
oblipation and actuarial gains and Josses not recognized reduced by past service cost not
vet recognized and the fair value of plan assets out of which the obligations are to be
settled directly. If such aggregate is negative, the asset is measored at the lower of such
aggregate or the aggregate of the cumulative unrecognized net actuarial losses and past
service cost and the present value of any economic benefits avaiiable in the form of
refunds from the plan or reductions in the fulure contributions of the plan (the asset

ceiling tost),

The Company recognizes past service cost as an expense on a strai ght-line basis over the
average vesting period. The Company recognizes past service cost jimmediately to the
extent that the benefits are already vested following the introduction of, or changes to, the

plan.

Foreign Currency Transactions

The functional and presentation curtency of the Company is the Philippine peso.
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in Philippine peso based on the prevailing
exchange rates at the date of ihe transactions. Foreign cumency denominated monetary
assets and liabilities are transiated using the exchange rates prevailing at the balance
sheet date. Hxchange gains or losses arising from translation of foreign currency
denominated itoms at rates different from those at which they were previously recorded

are credited or charged to current operations.

Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS is computed by dividing the net income by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the peried, with retroactive adjustments for any stock
dividends declared.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the net income attributable to common
shareholders by the weighted average number of commaon shares outstanding during the
vear adjusted for the effects of any dilutive potential common shares.

Dividends gn Common Shares

Cash dividends on common shares are recognized as a liability and deducted from equity
when approved by the BOD of the Company. Dividends for the year that ate approved
after the balance sheet date are dealt with as a nonadjusting event after balance sheet
date. . :

Segment Reporting

The Company’s operating business is organized and managed according to the nature of
the products provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that
offers different products and serves different markets.
-

Subsequent Bvents, - 1%

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Company’s pos_’i'lion at .

the balance sheet date (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Post
year-end events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements when material. © © ¢ e
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4. Financial Risk Management

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

= Credit risk
= Liquidity risk
= Market risk

This note nresents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks,
the Company’s objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risks, and
{he Company’s mapagement of capital. Further quantitative disclosures are included
throughout these financial statements, mainly in Note 23 to the financial staternents.

The main purpose of the Compary’s dealings i financial instruments i3 to fund its
operations and capital expenditores.

The BOD has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company’s risk menagement framework. Th: BOD has established the Executive
Committee  (EXCOM), which is responsibl= for developing and monitoring the
Company’s risk management policies. The EXCOM identifics all issues affecting the
aperations of the Company and reports regularly to the BCD on its activities.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the
risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor
visks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed
regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s actiyities. All risks
faced by the Company are incorporated in the annual operating budge. Mitigating
strategies and procedures are also devised to address the risks that inevitably oceur so as
not to affect the Company’s operations and forecasted results, The Company, through its
training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop & disciplined and
constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and
obligations.

The Audit Committee performs oversight over financial management functions,
specifically in the areas of managing eredit, liquidity, market and other risks of the
Company. The Audit Committee directly interfaces with the internal audit function,
which undertakes reviews of risk management controls-and.procedures and ensures the
integrity of internal control zctivities which affect the Eﬁnahciﬁlf-rﬁﬁhﬂgémEﬂt systemof
the Company. The results of procedures performed by Iatervial Audit are reported: to the'

Andit Committee. P

;

Credit Risk o e, e :
Credit risk represents the risk of loss the Company wduld incur-if-e dit: custoinégts and
counterparties fail to perform their contractual obliga ioms . The Company™s eredit risk

arises principaily from the Company’s trade reccivables. ’

@

Su

The Plant Credit Committees have established a credit policy under which each new
customer is analyzed individually for creditworthiness before standard credit terms and
conditions are granted. The Company's review inclides the requirements of updated .\
credit application documents, credit verifications through confirmation that there is no
credit violations and that the account is not included in the negative tist, and analyses of .
financial performance to énsure credit capacity. Credit limits are established for éach
customer, which serve as the maximum open amount at which they are allowed to
purchase on credit, provided that eredit terms and conditions are observed. Lo

[Py




The credit limit and status of each customer’s account are first checked before processing
a credit transaction. Customers that fail to meer the Company’s conditions in the credir
checking process may transact with the Company only on cash basis.

Tt is the Company’s policy to conduect an annua] credit review through identification and

summarization of under-performing customers and review and validation of credit

violation reports. Based on the summary, the Plant Credit Committees may upgrade,
downgrade, suspend and cancel crecit lines.

Most of the Company’s customers have been transacting with the Company for several
years, and losses have occurred from time (o time. Customer credit risks are mouitored
through anniial credit reviews conducted on a per plant basis. Results of credit reviews
are grouped and summarized according to credit characteristics, such as prographic
focation, aging profile and credit violations. Historically, credit violations have been
attributable to bouneed checks, and denied, fictiiious or absconded credit zecounts.

Collateral securities are required for credit linit applications that excced certain
thresholds (sec Note 23). The Company has policies for acceptable collateral securities
that may be presented upon submission of credit applications.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting financial
obligations as they fail due. The Company manages liquidity risk by forecasting
projected cash flows and maintaining a balance between continuity of funding and
flexibility. Treasury controls and procedures are in place to ensure that sufficient cash s
maintain=d to cover daily operational and working capital requirements, as well as capital
expenditures and debt service payments. Management closely monitors the Comparny’s
future and contingent obligations and sets up required cash reserves as necessary in
accordance with intemnal requirements. '

>

In addition, the Compény has the following credit facilities:

= The total commitment as of June 30, 2000 and 2008 under the line of credit is
P2.9 billion and P2 billion, respectively, of which the Company had drawn P219
million and P411 million, respectively, under letters of credit and short-term
loans. All facilities under the omnibus line bear interest at floating rates
consisting of a margin over current Philippine treasury rates; and

v P580 million and P480 miltion domestic bills pufdhased [iné, which are available
as of June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively. ¢ ... - FEFIRRS.

5

Market Rizk ;

Market tisk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as commodity prices,’ foreign
exchange rates, interest rates and other market prices will affé&t"tﬁ@:"Cbmpénj}.’S"E;ipcumé
or the value of its holdings of financial instruments, The. objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market rigkexposures within' adtéptable

parameters, while optimizing the retum.

The Company is subject to various market risks, including risks from changes in
commodity prices, interest rates and currency exchange rates.

Commaodity Prices .
The risk from commodity price changes relates to the Company’s ability to recover
higher product costs through price increases to customers, which may be limited due to
the competitive pricing environment that exists in the Philippine beverage market and the
willingness of consumers to purchase the same volume of beverages at higher prices.
" The Company’s most significant commeodity exposure is to the Philippine sugar price.

I - o



The Company minimizes its exposure to risks in changes in commodity prices by
entering into contracts with suppliers with duration ranging from six months to onc ycar
with fixed volume commitment for the contract duration and with stipulation for price
adjustments depending on market prices. The EXCOM considered the exposure 1o

commodity price risk to be insignificant.

Interest Rate Risk

The Company’s exposure to the risk for changes in matket interest rate relates primarily
{o its debt obligations with variable interest rates. The Treasury Departent, due to its
competencies of managing debt obligations, transacts with creditors to ensure the most
advantageous terms and {o reduce exposure to risk of changes in market interest rate.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk on purchases that are deneminated in
currencies other than the Philippine peso, mostly in 1.8, dollar and EURO. In respect of
monetary assets and lisbilities held in currencies other that the Philippine peso, the
Company ensures that its exposure is kept fo an acceptable level, by maintaining short-
term cash placements in U.S. doHar and buying foreign currencies at spot rates where
necessary to address short-term imbalances. The EXCOM considered the exposure 1o
foreign currency risk to be insignificant.

Capital Management
The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to increase the value of

shareholders’ investment and maintain reasonable growth by applying free cash flow to
selective investments that would further the Company’s product and geographic
diversification. The Company sets strategies with the objective of establishing a versatile
and resourceful financial management and capital structure.

The Chief Financial Officer has overall responsibility for monitoring of capita! in
proportion to risk. Profiles for. capital ratios are set in the light of changes in the
Company’s extermnal environment and the risks underlying the Company’s business
operations and indusiry, :

Accounts considered as capital by the Company are as shown in the balance sheets.

There were no changes in the Company’s approach to capital management during the
year and the Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

y—

5. Cash and Cash Equivalents :.

Cash and cash equivalents consist oft
% .'?{ R .

ek

Cash on hand and in banks ™ " 1+ it
Short-lerm investmerits * ~ 202,780 444,143
I . P413,088 P590,326

Cash in banks eamszﬁtere g :1tli'..é""ré§ii;é:étiva‘ bank deposit rates. Short-term investments
are made for varying periods of up to three months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Company and earn interest at the respective short-term imvestment
rates. - CnpEE e T '

i
T




The Company’s exposure to interest rate risk and sensitivity analyses is disclosed in
Note 23,

6. Receivables

Receivables consist oft

. Note 2009 2008

Trade 23 1,081,531 P917,272
Others , 56,731 66,885
- 1,138,262 084,157

1 .ess allowance for impairment losses 150,297 102,082
P937,963 P882.075

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on a 30 to 60 days term.
Other receivables consist mainly of feceivables from employees and freight and
insurance claims. :

The movements in allowance for impairment losses en receivables are as follows:

2009 2008
Tirade  Others Trade (Others
Balance at beginning of vear r75,226 FP26,8% P57565 P9.826
Impairment Josses recognized during the
vear 53,118 304 20,778 20,499
Write-offs during the year (2,832 (2375 (3,117} (3.469)
Balance at end of year P125,512 P24,785 P75226 P26,856

The Company’s exposure to credit risk related to trade and other receivables is disclosed

in Note 23.
7. Inventories P ;
Inventories conaist of: 3 o .
Note 2008 :
Finished goods: 11 TR N W AT L
At cost P325,527 77 P359,00 -
At net realizable value ‘ ‘ . 322,427 358,140 ‘
Work in process: o 1! j
At cost S | 9,475 10,812
At net realizable value 9,475 10,812
Raw and packaging materials: . 11 |
At cost | _ 286,956 227,376
At net realizable value ! ‘ - 272,242 218,985
Spare parts and supplies: . . D
At cost ool L . 99,935 91,086 .
At net realizable value § - - 99819 - 90,996

Total inventories at lower of cost or net”
realizable value - =\ bl o

. P3963 . P6T89%.
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Under the terms of agreements covering liabilities under trust receipts, certain inventories
have been relessed to the Company in trust for cerfuin Incal banks. The Company is
accountable to these banks for the trusteed inventories (see Note 11).

In addition, the Company’s notes payable are secured by morigage trusts indentures on
varioug assets, which include P284 million and P230 million of inventories as of
June 30, 2009 and 2008.

8, Imvestments in Associates
Investments in associates consist of:

Percentage (%4}
of Ownership

2060 2008 2009 2008
Acquisition cost:
Madeco Realty Cerporation {NRC) 0%  40% P232,308 P232.503
Nadeco Holdings Corporation (WHC) 40%  40% 132 132
‘ 232,640 232,640
_Effect of diltiou of ownership in NRC (1,018) (1,018)

231,622 231,622

Accumulated equity in net eamnings: ;
Balance at the beginning of the year 293 880 273,852

Equity in net eamings for the year 2,221 20,028
Balance at the end of the year 296,101 293,580

P527,723  PS25,502

The financial reporting date of NRC and NHC is June 30. The applicaticn of the equity
method of accounting is based on the Company’s beneficial interest in the net profits and
net assets of NRC and NHC in accordance with their respective articles of incorporation.

As of June 30, 2009 and 2008, the undistributed earnings of the associates included in the
Company’s retained eamings amounting to P296 million and P294 million, respectively,
are not available for distribution to stockholders unless declared by the associates. .

The following are the summarized comparative ﬁnanc:al mfmnnatmn pertammgntt) ‘thc
Company’s associates: CL

As oEJune 34, 2000 . R

. Assets __ Liabilities Eq_m “Reventies - iNat Tocome

NRC : PH01,750  PIB,680 P515,070- 0 ~P10,580. 1,994
NHC (conzolidated) 1 §02,230 243,016 5100273 £ hundsgl :-“J, zm
! v E

As of June :3

: Assets Liahilities Equity Revenues _ Met Income
NRC - P791,483 P274,407 P5I7,076 Pa4,348 P19,941

NHC (consolidated) i 792,021 275,081 516940 ° 34,349 20,335 -




9, Rottles and Cases

Bottles and cases consist of:

Note 2009 2008

Deposit values of retumable bottles and

cases on hand - net of allowance for

anusable containers of 16,714 in 2009

and P7,386 in 2008 1 440,948 P305,576
Excess of cost over deposit values of ‘

returnable bottles and cases - net of

accumulated amortization 11 1,992,778 1,635,490
2,433,726 . 1,941,066
Bottles and shells in transit ‘ 7,472 31,588

P2,441,198 P1,972,654

The rollforward of excess of cost over deposit values of returnable bottles and cases is as

follows:

2009 ‘ 2008
Gross carrying amount: .
Balance at beginning of year - P4,317,702 P3,633,724
Additions ' ~ - 343,070 683,978
Balance at the end of year 5,160,772 4,317,702
Accumulated amortization: ‘
Balauce at beginning of year . 2,682,212 2,291,810
Atnortization for the year 490,031 - 379,599
Other movements (4,249 10,803
Balance at the end of year 3,167,994 2,682,212
Carrying amount: . : ‘
BRalance at beginning of year P1,635490  P1341914

Balance at end of year ' 71,992,778 P1,635,490
A portion of the Company’s bottles and cages with & total collateral value of P4 .billion
based on original cost of bottles as of June 30, 2009 and 2008 are mortgaged and placed
'n trust under two mortgage trust indentures to secure the Company’s outstanding notes
payable (see Mote 11},

I
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10. Pmpc;'ty, Plant and Equipment'
The movements in this aceount are as follows:

Buildings and

Machiﬁery and Leasehold Construction Furniture

Orther Equipment Improvemends  in Progress  and Fixtures Yotal
(rogs carrying amount:
July 1, 2007 4,904,938 566,397 455,952 P24.631 P5952438
Additions 728,216 88,536 491299 1A67 - 1309,518
Dzpasals/wiite-oile (56,543) (5.624) 111,564) - (74.133)
Tranzsfers . 714,098 ‘ 8,463 (723.051) 450 -
Tune 30, 2008/3uly 1, 2008 6,290,757 638,272 212,736 20608 7187873
Additions 715,130 116,621 Co- 2,713 §33,564
Dispasals/wiite-offs {92, 842) {11,126) - - (162} {104,130
Transfeors 179,483 {492} {178,924) (67) -
Tnne 3, 2009 7092528 762,675 33312 20092 7917607

Accumutated depreciation

and amortization: ' ]
July 1, 2007 (3,393,519 380,588 - 20274 3,794,381

Diepreciation and amortization 333,149 36,115 - 48 590,012
Dispesels/write-offs — {52,84M) (3.10%) . - (57979
Time 30, 2008/July 1, 2008 3,893,794 411,598 - 21,022 4326414
Depreciation and amortization 498,218 36,497 - 1,078 535,793
Dispasala/write-off (92,447) {7.994) - {160%  {100.661)
June 30, 2009 4,299,565 . 440,181 B 21,940 4,761,606
Carrying amouni:

June 30, 2608 P2.396,963 : 246,674 P212 236 P5,586 72,861,459
June 30, 2009 F2, 792,563 F322,574 133312 F7,152 P3,156,001

A substantial portion of the Company’s property, plant and cquipment and certain parcels
of land owned by MRC with a total collateral value of 3.4 billion as of June 30, 2009
and 2008 are mortgaged and placed in trust under two mortgage trust indentures to secure
the Company’s outstanding notes payable (see Notes 11 and 14).

During the fiscal years 2009 and 2008, the Company has completed the expansion of
certain plants located in key and strategic locations. Tt will continue to invest to complete
the remaining expansion projects line up. ‘

Change in EUL of Marketing Egquipment _ )

During the fiscal year 2009, the Company reassessed the EUL of its marketing
equipment. The said equipment, which is included as part of property, plant and
equipment under “Machinery and Other Equipment” account, with previous EUL of five
vears is now expected to remain in operations for seven years from the date of purchase.
The effect of change in depreciation expense for the current and future years is as

+

follows: TR : T

T

2009 2010 2011 2012 ARer2012

Tncrease (decrease) in , o g o
depreciation expense (P91,548)  (P70,604)  (P48,103), -
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11. Notes Payable

This account represents short-term loans from various local banks which are payable in
lymp sum on their respective maturity dates up to November 14, 2009 {up to July 10
in 2008). Inlerest rates on the said loans are repriced monthly based on nzgotiated rates or
prevailing market rates. The shert-term loans arc secured by mortgage trust indentures on
inventories, botiles and cases, and teal estate, which include certain restrictions and

requirements.

Tnterest rates range from 6.00% to 6.50% for 2009, 6.00% to 6.25% for 2008, and 7.00%
to 3.00% for 2007. Interest cxpense on notes payabie recognized in the statements of
income amounted to P22 million, P36 million and 32 million for 2009, 2008 and 2007,

respectively.

Information about the Company’s exposure to interest rate risk and liquidity risk is
disclosed in Note 23,

12. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

Accounts payable and accrmed expenses consist of:

‘ - Note 2009 2008
Trade payables L 714 P1,228,174 P1,485,148
Accrued advertising and marketing 147,319 59,026
Non-trade payables - 104,505 125,582
Accrued retirement cost - current 24 82,324 40,785

Other acerned expenses 576.058 339,452
: P2,136,38¢  P2,079,994

The Company’s other acerued expenses consist mainly of accruals for salaries and
wages, other employee benefits, utilities and other operating expenses.

The Company’s exposure to liquidity risk related to trade and other payables is disclosed
in Note 23. s o

13. Income Taxes

The cotnponents of the income tax expense are as follows:
3

i

2009 -l
Current tax expense and final taxes on
interest income: ‘ '
Current period | P324,832 P81,302 P363,235
Prior period - ‘ - (171,236) -
Deferred tax expense from '
origination and reversal of . .. .
and others 56,907 330,156 155,006

temporary differences .
o T TR L T et ET P381,739 P240,222 P51“8,241 o
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Deferred tax liabilities - net are attributable to the following:

2009 2008
Allowance for probable losses in values of bottles
and cases, idle assets, impairment losses, |
inveniory obsolescence and other provisicns 780,712 P6s,584
Accruaal for retirement costs 64,246 70,709
Vast service cost 34,079 33,187
_Excess MCIT - 29,104
179,037 203,584
Bottles and cases (396,075) (368.195)
Marketing equipment (158.685) (125,101)
(554,760) {493,266)
(P375,723) (P289,712)

In 2009, the Company appled the MCIT (incurred in 2008) amounting to P29 million as

tax credit against its regular corporate income tax.

In 2008, the Company received a ruling from the Bureau of Internal Revenue {(BIR)
which allowed acceleration of deductions on marketing equipment and bottles and cases,

The reconciliation of the income tax expense computed at the statutory income tax rate to

the income tax expense shown in the statements of income is as follows:

2009 2008 2007
Income before incoma tax - - P 1,181,429 P1,000919 . P1,519.627
Tax rate at 32.5% in 2009 and 35% in. '
2008 and 2007 : ‘ P383,%64 350,322 P331,869
Additions to (reductions in) income :
tax resulting from the tax effects of: ‘ .
Nondeductible expenses ‘ 1,704 .2,757 2,528
Change in tax rate i E 1,192 (51,607 {45y
Interest income subjected to final tax (4,358) (6,565) (4,979)
Equity in net earnings of associates (721) (7,010) {2,377
Transaction cost charged to equity (48,204) P
Others 520 (8,753)
P381,73%9 240,222 P518,241

On May 24, 20605, Republic 'Act No.. 9337 entitled “An Act Amending the_National
Internal Revenue Code, as' Amended, with Satient Features” (Act), was passed into a law
effective November 1, 2005. The Act includes the following significant revisions to the

rules of taxation, amonyg others:

a. Reduction in the corporate ineome tax rate from
and onwards; and

Z21 -

- . F
EATT S €

| P
b. Reduction in unallowable interest rate from 42% fo 33%

E""“: TR e e oy
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14. Related Party Transactions

Related party relationship exists when one party has ability to control, directly or
indirectly, through one or more intermediaries, the other party or exercise significant
influence over the other party in making the financial and operating decisions. Such
relationship also exists between and/or among entities which are- under common control -
with the reporting enterprises, or between and/or among the reporting enterprises and’
their key management personnel, directors, or it stockholders.,

The Company has significant related party fransactions which are summarized as
follows:

a. The Company has Exclusive Bottling Agreements with PepsiCo, Tnc. (“PepsiCo™),
stockholder. which has 29.49% beneficiai interest in the Company, up o year 2017
and Pepsi Lipton International Limited (“Pepsi Lipton™), a joint venture of PepsiCo
and Unilever N.V., up to year 2012. Under the agreements, the Company 15
suthorized to bottle, sell and distribute Pepsi and Lipton beverage products in the
Philippines. In addition, FepsiCo and Pepsi Lipton shall supply the Company wilh
the main raw materials (concentrates) in the production of ihese beverage products
and share in the funding of cortain marketing programs. The agreements may be
renewed by mutual agreement between the parties. Under the agreements, PepsiCo
and Pepsi Lipton have the right to terminate the contracts under certain conditions,
including failure to comply with terms and conditions of the appointment subject to
written notice and rectification period, change of ownership control of the Company,
change of .ownership control of an entity which controls the Company,
discontinuance of bottling beverages for 30 consecutive days, occurrence of certain
events leading to the Compamy’s insolvency or bankruptcy, change in management
and control of the business, among others. Total net purchases from PepsiCo,
amounted to P2.6 billion, P2.4 billion .and P24 hillion for the years ended
June 30, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respeetively. Total purchases from Pepsi Lipton for

' the years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008 amounted to P81 million and P94 million,
respectively. There are no Pepsi Lipton transactions in 2007,

The Company has a cooperative advertising and marketing program with PepsiCo
and Pepsi Lipton that sets forth the agreed advertising and marketing activities and
participation arrangement during the years covered by the bottling agreements. In
certain instances, the Company pays for the said expenses and claim reimbursement
from PepsiCo. For the years ended June 30, 2009, 2008 and 2007, the Company
incurred marketing expenses amounting to P521 milltion, P665 million and P468
million, respectively. The Company's receivable from PepsiCo amounted to P27
million and P136 million as of June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

b. On April 11, 2007, the Company entered into a Performance Agreement with
PepsiCo to meet certain marketing and investment levels from 2007 10 2017, as |
required by the bottling agreement with PepsiCo. The agreement.requires the .
Company to: (1) spend a specified percentage with a minimum amount for the
beverage products; (2) make certain investments based on a minimum percentage of .
‘the Company’s sales to expand the Company’s manufacturing capacity; (3) invest in .t
a minimum number of coolers per yeat to sug*ponﬁn-di:s.tgril}:gtqu%ﬁxpansio'n; and

(4) expand the Company’s distribution capahilitie'ef‘i_n' terms df the ‘humb

] in 4 “thé number vfactive.
routes, the number of new routes and the num S tiu ed; for! ibuti
suppott. I S '
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¢. Certain parcels of land properties of NRC, an associate, were mortgaged 1o seoure a
portion of the Company’s notes payable. The Company leases these parcels of land
where some of its bottling plants are located. Lease expenses recngnized amounted to
P9.6 million, P11 million and P3 million for the years ended June 30, 2009, 2003 and
2007, respectively. The Company has advances to NRC amounting to P38 million
whick bears interest at a fixed rate of 10% per annum, The Company also has
outstanding net receivables from NRC amounting to P50 million and P46 million as
of June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively, which are unsecured, noninterest bearing
and payable on demand.

d. The Company has outstanding working capital advances to NHC, an associale,
amounting to P2 million and P1 million as of June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively,
and which are unsecured, noninterest bearing and pﬂyﬂble on demand,

In addition to their salaries, the Company also provides honcash benefits to key
management personnel, and contributes to a defined bensfit retirement plan on their

hehalf.

The compensation and benefits of key management personnel are as follows:

‘ 2009 2008 2007
Short-term employee benefits PTHO,721 P78,304 P66, 168
Post-employment benefits 3,754 3,721 3.5]1
o P74 475 82,025 PA9.679
15. Net Sales
Net sales consist of:
2009 2008 2007
(Gross sales P16,600329 T15,283,095 P15,062,155
Lesy sales returns and discounts 2,368,284 2,302,209 2,145,943

Pi14,232,045 TI12,580,88c P12,%16,212

16. Cost of Goods Sold

Cost of goods sold consists of:

‘ -Note 2009 2008 .. 2007
Materials and supplies ﬁséd 14 P7,547,548  P6,617972  P6,679,823
Delivery and freight - 769,511 - 713,567 646,252
Depreciation and amortlzatlon 19 ‘154,666 654,400 561,242
Rental and utilities . 14, 27 2608318 261,934 .. 248,264
Personnel expenses oo 20,24 249,359 | 258,737 _249 715..
_Others- S G 453,336 }; H67,466 380,866,

e
s i ‘ |
© P10042,738 - PRY 41504‘5__.‘, S, 766,162 <25
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17. Selting and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses consist of:

Noie 2009 2008 2007
Distribution P470,626 P438,582 P400,295
Personne] expenses 20, 24 408,061 434,600 376,829
Depreciation 19 233 383 269,348 S 211,031
Delivery and freight 230,101 193,776 192 4885
Rental and utilities 14,27 122,723 131,703 108,413
Others 437,680 362,300 310,515
P1,902,574  P1,830,309  P1,599,571
18. General and Administrative Expenses
Generzl and administrative expenses consist of.
. Note 2009 2008 - 2007
Personnel expenses 20, 24 P101,069 344 817 P301,052
Qutside services 106,881 73,883 72,714
Rental and utilities 14, 27 50,154 88,838 69,285
Others 19 132,746 140,542 144,030
‘ P620,850 P6434,080 P587,081
19. Depreciatior and Amortization
Depreciation and amortization are distributed as follows:
Note 3009 2008 2007
Cost of goods sold .16 P754,666 P654,400 P561,242
Selling and distribution 17 233,383 269,348 211,031
General and administrative 18 37,175 45,863 41,264
P1,025,824 P969,611 P8§13,537
20. Personnel Expenses o
_ ~_Note 2009 2008 .. 72007
Salaries and wages P013,698 PO70,446 PR60,320
Retirement cost 24 34,791 67,708 67,276
P948,489 7 P1.0387154 =0 ~POLT 3D6 e
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The above amounts are distributed as fotlows!

Note 2009 2008 2007

) Cost of goods sold | 16 P249,359 P258.737 P249,715
Selling and distribution 17 408,061 434,600 376,829
_General and administrative 18 291,069 344,817 301,052

948,489 P1,038,154 RO27.596

During the current year, the Company modified the income statement classification of
personne] expenses on certain employees to appropriately reflect the way in which
econemic benefits are derived from the services provided. Comparative amounts were
reclassified for consistency which resulted in the following increases (decreases):

Note 2008 2007
Cast of goods sold 16 r9.735 - P6.126
Selling and distribution 17 45,904 28,889
General and adminisirative 18 (35,639} (35,015)

21. Basic/Dilnted Earnings Per Share (EPS)
Rasic EPS is computed as follows:

2009 =008 2007
Net income (3) ' P799,620 P760,697 F1,001,386
Weighted average number of shares ' -

outstanding (b)* 3,693,772,279 3 471648925 3312089386

Basic/Diluted EPS {(a/b) Po.22 PO.22 P0O.30

* Weighted average number of shares outstanding is based on the rotal issuance during the period multipticd by the number
of months putstanding over one year and number of shares omstanding shares throughout the year.

As of June 30, 2009, 2008 and 2007, the Company has no dilutive debt or equity
instruments. 3

22, Segment Information

As discussed in Note 1, the Company is engaged in the manufacture, sales and
distribution of CSD and NCB. The Company’s main products under its CSD category.
include brands like Pepsi-Cola, 7Up, Mountain Dew and Mirinda. The NCB! brand
category includes Gatorade, Tropicana/Twister, Lipton and the recently introduced Sting
energy drink and Propel fitness water. ' v

# - The Company operates under two {2) reportable business segments, the CSD and NCB
. categories, and only one (1) reportable geographicat-segment.which. is. th hi&?ﬁi_e“es- :
Thus, a secondary geographic reporting format is n v%ppl' b Bk
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Analysis of financial information by business segment is as follows:

Carbonated Soft Drinks MNuncarbonated Beverages Cwmbrined
(Tn (HG0,000°5) 2089 2008 2007 1069 2008 2007 20049 2008 2007
Met Sales
Esdernat sales P1L547 Pl2390  Di2T36 P4,053 P2.293 P14 Pla6al0  TIS2E3 P15047
Sales discounts and temrng {1,953} {1985)  (1,962) (415) (317 (16N {2308y (2308 {2,146)
Met sales PF10,5%4 F1O405  #10,774 1'3,638 F2,376  PL142 PI4,232  TIZPBE Flz 96
Resull
Sepment result* 73118 29 PiA62 F1,071 P21 PGS 14,189 4,107 4,150

Unallocated expenses {3,144 £3,143) (2,555}

Interest and finaneing

experses (22) 30) (31
Interesl incoine 17 23 §:3
Equity in net enmings of

agsociales 1 n 7
{ther income = net 40 30 i
Lncome 1ax expeise 380 §240) (518)
Net income L) 1761 1,001
Other lnformation
Segment asgets: ar PT.500 7,319 Fi 047
Investments in associates s 526 305
Othes nonewrrent asaets 144 138 13a

- - 40

Deferred iax assels
Combined toin] cssets

P8,562 7 983 PAR737

Segment lfabifities: FEI70 12 265 73339
HNotes payable B4 147 49
Long-term, debt - - 283
Income tax payabls ‘ 156 i 338
Dividenda payahle and 2

athers : - aon
Deferred tax lizbilities - net 376 290 “

Combined total 2 bilides F1852 2,703 3,409

Capital expenditures: 1,328 F2.003 F1EL?

Depreciation and
amortization and
imgairment losses of
property, plant and .
mquipment 1,026 &1 514

HNoncash items other than.
depraciation and
amortization

* Segment expenses were allocated based on - the percontage of cach ropu bl ssgment’s pet sales gver total not sales.

133 46 25

There were no intersegment sales recognized between the two reportable segments.

Assets and liabilities of the Company are not specifically identifiable or allocated to each
particular segment. '

23. Financial Instrumenis

Credit Risk SN

" The carrying amounts of the financial assets represent the Company’s maximum credit -~
exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk as at June 30 is as follows: - s
2009 2008 s
" Receivables - net o . PO87,965 Pg82.075
Cash in banks and cash equivalents g 273673 ... . 475,764

]




The aging of trade receivables is as follows:

June 39, 2009 June 30, 2008
Gross Amount Impairment Gross Amount Impairment
Current 649,654 P - P518,732 P -
Past due (-30 days 229,850 - 211,240 -
Past due 31-60 days 51,808 - 69,315 -
More than 60 days 150,219 115 5172 117,985 75226
F1,081,531 P125,512 P917,272 P75.226

Various collateral securities such as bank guarantees, time deposits, surety bonds, real
estate and/or chattel mortgages are held by the Company for trade receivables exceeding
certair amounts,

Liguidity Risk
The following are the contractual maturities of {inancial fiabilities, including estimated

interest payments and excluding the impact of netting agreements:

As of June 33, 2008

Carrying Contractusl 6 Months or
Amount Cash Flow less

Financial liabilities )
Notes payable ‘ F50,000 750,124 P50,324
Actounts payable and accmed expenses 1,977426  1,877426 1,977,426
: P2,027426 - I*2,027,550 72,027,550

"

As of June 30, 2008

C&rij/irlg Contractaal
Amount Cash Flow + & Months or less
Financial lishilities :
MNotes payable F147,100 P147,390 P147,890
Accounts. payable and accrucd mrggg_scs 1,968,299 1,968,199 . 1,968,199
P2,115,399 P2,116,089 P2,116,085

erest Rate Risk
The interest rates profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments is as

follows:

2000 2008

Financial assets P222.553 P463,947
Financial liabilities ‘ {50,000) (147,100)

P172,553 P316,347

Sensitivity Analysis
A 2% increase in inferest rates would have increased equity and profits for the years

ended June 30, 2009 and 2008 by P23 million and P4.1 million, respectively.

A 2% decrease in mte:mst rates for the years ended Jtme 30 2009 anr.i 2008 would have




Fair Values

The Tair values of the financial assets and liabilities approximate the carrying amonnts
due to the shori-term nature of these financial instruments or the interest rates that they
carry approximate interest rates for comparable instruments in the market.

24. Relirement Plan

The Company has a funded, noncontributory defined benefit retirement plan covering
substantially all of its regular and full time employ=es. A trustee bank is administering
the retiremient phan. Annual cost s determined using the projected unit credit method.
The Company’s latest actuarial valuation date is June 30, 3009. The actuarial valuation is
made on an annual basis.

The reconciliation of the assets and liabilities recognized m the balance sheets is shown

below:
2009 2008
Present value of defined benefit obligation P382,590 P333,886
Fair value of plan assets 175,708 195,117
Unfunded obligations 206,882 138,769
Unrecognizad net actuarial gatns 7,272 88,593
Accrued retirement cost 214,154 P227 342

The current portion of accrued retirement cost which is included under “Accounts
_payable and accrued expense” account in the balance sheets amounted to P82 million and
P41 million as of June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

The components of retirement cost recognized in the statements of income are as follows:

2009 2008 2007

Current service cost 726,619 - P35.469 739,394
Inierest cost 32,742 33,649 38,452
Past service cost ' - 13,977 -
Expected return on plan assets {20,905) (15,387) (13,539)
Amortization of unrecognized net - -

actuarial loss (gain) ‘ (3,665) - 2,969
MNet retirement cost P34,791 167,708 P67,276
Actual retuin on plan assets P12,363 P3,7235 P7,241

The Company’s retircment cost is allocated between “Cost of goods sold” accounit in the
statements of income which amounted to P6 million, P14 million and P25 million in
2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively, and “Operating expenses” account in the statements
of income which amounted to P28 million, P53 million and P42 million in 2009, 2003
. and 2007, respectively.

oo e
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The changes in the present valee of defined benefit obligation are a5 follows:

2009 20038

Balance at beginning of year P333,880 366,031

Current service cost 26,619 35,469

Interest cost ‘ 32,742 33,649

1ast service cost ‘ - 13,977
Benefits paid : (76,351) {11,062)
_ Actuarial foss (gain) #5,694 {104,178)

Balance at end of vear : P382,590 333,886

" The movements in the fair value of plan assets are shown below:

2009 2008

Baiance at beginning of year ‘ P195,i17 P148,454
Contributions 48,600 54,000
Benefits paid ‘ (76,351) (11,062)

Expected return - 20,905 15,387
Net actuarial loss (11,963) {11,662)

Balance at end of year P175,708 P195,1147

The Company’s plan assets comprise of 99% investment in fixed income sceuritics and

1% investments in shares of stocks both In 2009 and 2008,

Principal actuarial assumptions used in determining retirement cost at the balance sheet

date (expressed as weighted averages) are as follows:

Anmnuizl rates . 2009 2008
Discount rate 0.25% 10.00%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 4.75% 10.00%
Rate of fiture salary increase 3.00% 5.00%
The historical information :of the amounts is as follows:
2009 2008 2007 2006

Present value of the defined :

benefit obligation P3582,590 P333.886 P366,031 PARD 055
Fair value of plan assets 175,708 195,117 148,454 111,472
Deficit in the plan . - (206,882) (138,769 217,577y {297,583)
Experience adjustments on. L :

plan Habilities loss (gain) 20,706 (5,603) (42,167) -

Experience adjustments on . . ‘
plan assets loss * {11,%63) {11,662) (19,246)




25. Capital Stock

This account consists of:

2009 2008 2007
Shares Amount Shares Amount | Shares Amount

Authorized - 10135 :

par value 5000000600 P754, A 5,000,000,000  P750, 600 3,000,000,000 P75, 000
Tssued and outstanding: ‘
Balance ai beginning of

year 3693772279 P554066 3312980386 PA9G94E 3312980386  P456,948
Tsserance during the year - - 380,782,503 57,118 - !
Palance at end of year 3693772279 Fs54066  3,693,772270 P554.066 3312989386  P496,948

On February 1, 2008, the Company’s initial public offering of 1,142,348,680 shares at
P3.50 per share culminzted with the listing and trading of its shares of stocks under the
First Board of the Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc. Of the total shares offered,
380,782,893 shares pertain fo the primary offering, which resulted in an increase in
capital stock amounting to P57 million and additional paid-in capital of P1.2 billion, net
of PL3% million transaction cost (hat is accounted for as a reduction in equity.

26. Retained Earnings

The BOD approved several declarations of cash dividends amounting to P369 million in
2000 and P400 million in 2007. There were no cash dividends declarations in 2008.

Dietails of the declarations are as follows:

Payable to
Dividend Per - Stockholdersof . .
Date of Declaration Share Record as of Date of Payment
June 21, 2007 P0.12 June 21, 2007 August 20, 2007
0.10 October 15,2008 ~ November 7, 2008

September 30, 2008

27, Commitments and Contingencies

a. ‘The Company leases, from third parties and NRC, certain parcels of land where it’s
bottling plants and warchouses are located for a period of one to twenty-five years
and are renewable for another one to twenty-five years. None of these leases includes
contingent rentals. Rent expense pertaining to these leased properties amounted to
P73 million in 2009, P69 million in 2008 and P61 million in 2007 (see Notes 14, 16,

17 and 18).

i

Future rental commitments under such noncancelable operating leases are as follows:

2007

o 2009 2008
Less than one year P63,803 P74.020 P62,676
Retween one and five years 204,332 239,534 470,329
- More than five years . 197,321
Ly P465,456 -

30




The Company is a party to a number of lawsuits and claims relating 10 tax, labor and
other issues arising out of the normal course of its business, Management and its tax
and legal counsels helieve that the outcome of these lawsuits and claims will not
materially affect the financial position, financial performance or liquidity of the
Company.
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REFORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Pepsi-Cola Products Philippines, Ingc.
Km. 29, National Road

Tunasan, Muntinlupa City

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the financial statemonts of
Pepsi-Cola Products Philippines, Inc. as of and for the year ended June 30, 2009, included in this
Form 17-A and have issued our report thereon dated September 22, 2009.

Qur audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken
as a whole. The accompanying Schedule of Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for
Dividend Declaration is the responsibility of the Company’s management.  This schedule is
presented for purposes of complying with the Securities and Exchange Commission
Memorandum Circular No. 11, Series of 2008, Guidelings on the Determination of Retoined
Earnings Available of Dividend Declaration, and is not part of the basic financial statements.
This schedule has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, in our opinion, fairly states in all material respects, the financiai
staternents data required to be set forth therein in relation to the basic financial statements aken
as a whole.

NAGUSTIN & CD., CPAs

“afd
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Partner

CPA License No. 0083761

SEC Accreditation Ma. 0312-AR-1
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Issued July 10, 2007; Valid until July 9, 2010

TR No. 1564051 MB
Issued January &, 2009 at Makati City ;

September 22, 2009
Makati City, Metro Manila
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_Manabat Sanagustin & 'Co., certifiad public accountants, a professional partniership
establishad under Philipping law, is a member firm of the KPMG netwark of independent
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Pepsi-Cola Products Philippincs, Tuc.
Km. 29, National Road
Tunansan, Muntinlupa City

Schedule of Reconeiiiation of Retained Earnings Available for Divided Declaratlon
{Amounts in Thousands)

Unappropriated Retained Eamings, as adjusted o F3,328,969
availebie for dividend distribution, beginning ‘

Add: Netincome actually earned/realized during the period 799,690
Net income during the perind closed to Retained Eamings

Less: Non actual/onrealized income net of tax

Equity in net income of associate ' (2,221)
Unrealized foreign exchange gain - net -
Unrealized actvarial gain ‘ -
Fair value adjustment (M2M Gains) -
Fair value adjustment of invesiment property resulting to gain -
Adjustment due to deviation from PFRS/GAAFP -gain -
Other unrealized gains or adjustments to retained earmnings

a5 & result of certain transactions accounted for under PFRS -

Subtotal 4,326,438

Add: Non-actual losses :
Depreciation on revaluation increment (after tax) X -
Adjustment due to deviation from PFRS/GAAT -lose _
Loss on fair value adjustment of investment property (after tax) -

Net income actually earned during the period 4,326,438
Add(less):
Divideng Declaration during the period (369,204}

Appropriation of Retained Eamings during the period -
Reversals of Appropriation .
Effects of prior period adjustments -
Tressury shares ) -

Total Retained Earnings, End - Avaijlable for Dividend P3,957,234
—_——r T

[
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Certified Public Ascountants Fix +63 (1) B94 1985
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BE787 Ayala Avenua
Makati City 1226, Metro Manita, Philippines

PRC-BOA Registration No. 0003
SEC Accieditation No. N004-FR-2
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Pepsi-Cola Products Philippines. Inc.
Km. 29, National Read

Tunasan, Muntinlupa City

We have audited in accordance with Fhilippine Standards on Auditing, the accompanying
financial statements of Pepsi-Cola Products Philippines, Inc. included in this Form 17-A and have

issued our report thereon dated September 22, 2009.

Qur audit wvas made for the purpose of formwg an opinion on the basic financial statements taken
as a whole. Schedules A to K (ccllectively referred to as “Schedules™), as listed in the Index to
Financial Statements and Supplementary Schedules, are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. These Schedules are presented for purposes of complying with the Securities
Regulation Code Rule 68.1 and are not part of the basic financial statements. These Schedules
have been quhjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statenients and, in our opinion, fairly state, in all matenial respects, the financial statements data
required to be set forth therein in relation to the basm financial statements taken as a whole.

MANA, SANAGUSTIN & CO., CPAs

Y Wéﬂ £ Gp—"

EMERALD ANNE C. BAGNES

Partner

CPA License No. 0083761

SEC Accreditation No. 0312-AR-1

Tax Identification Mo, 102082332

BIR Accreditation No, 08-001987-12-2007
Tssued July 10, 2007; Valid until July 9, 2010
PTE No. 15364051MB

Tssued January 5, 2009 at Makati City

S

e ——

.
N

September 22, 2009
Makati City, Metro Manila

Manabat Sanagustin. &' Cu., certified ‘p‘ul:'rlic. pccountants, a prbfcs:ionul partnership
established under Philippine law, is a member firm of the KPMG network of independent
mamber firms affitiated with KPFMG International, a Swiss cooperative,



PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC.
Schedule A. Marketable Securities - (Current Marketabla Equity Securities and Other Short-term Cosh investments)

Name of {asuing entity and
association of each izsue

(1)

Number of shares of
principat amount of bonds
and notas

Amoynt shawn in the
balance sheaet (2)

Valued based on markeat
quetation at balance sheef
date: (3)

Income received and
acorued

NOT APPLICABLE
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PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC,
Schedule O, Indebtednesy of Unconsolidated Subsidiuriea and Affiliates

Balance st end of penod (2) “

Name of Afftliates (1) i Balance gt baginning of percd

HOT APFLICABLE




PEPSILEOLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, ING.
Sehaduls E. Proparty, Plant and Eguipment (1)
PEPSI-COLA PRODUGTS PHILIPPINES, INC.
Scheduls E. Property, Plant and Equipment (1)

Classiication (2) Begning balancs ‘Additions at cost {5) Retirements (4] | Tranafers - adotons
(deductions) (3}
Machinery and Ofiver Eqdipmcm P&6.230 756,776 F715,130,080 {Faz.841.828) P470,482,653 P7.092 528,181
Buildings and Leashold improvements 658,271,979 116:021,129 {11,126 058) {492,187} 767 674 BG4
Constnsction in Brogress 212,238,161 (178,523,297} 33,512,264
Furtituzre and Fdures 26,607 813 2,713,198 {162,040) (56,85%) 29,082,101
Totals PY,187,672,723 PB33,064,407 (F104,729,726) B

F71.,817 6G7.410
Serrcnicy




PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC.

Scheduls F. Accumutated Depreciation

Description (1) Beglnning Balance | Additions charged 1o Retirements Diher charges - Add] Ending balances |
coats and expenses {dedurt) describe
mMachtnery and Other Equipment P3,803,734,197 P408.217.772 {FB2.446,613) P- P4 2899 565 355
Bulldings and Leashald Improvemeants 411,598.450 36,496 479 (7,993,547} - 440,101,332
_Eumiture and Fhdures 21,021,316 1,078,288 {160,050) - 24 939,685

Tolals

P4,32€, 413,863

P525,782,600

{P100,600,248)

P4,764,605,352




PEPSI-COLA PRODUGTS FHILIPPINES, INC.

Schedule . Intangible Assets - Other Azsels

“Bescnption (1) — Beglning beance | Additiona at cost] Ghargsd io cost Charged ta Qiher changes énding Galancs
(2) and expanses othgr accounts additlons
{elaductiang)
har Arasta
Iclle Mixed amsets - et 1,053,206 P- F- F- (543,332 P330.062
Input tax on captat goods 102,841,538 - - - 7042584 110,984,130
MisCelaneaus imesiments and dep O2,047,358 - - (441,548} 31,605,804
Miscellzneous receivables - long term 528,286 - - - (196 437) 331 859
Miscallarnsous 3a5:i5 449,303 - - AGT 305
Totals P138,038,378 P- F- P- F5,901,236 F143,941,134
.
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PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC,

Schedule H. Long Term Debt

Title of Issue and type JAmount authorizad by Amount shows Undet caphon JAmount shown under caption
of obligation indentura “Current portion of long-tetin deby” J'hong-Term Debt" in related
i in refated balance sheet balance sheet

MOT APPLICABLE




PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS EHILIPPINES, INC.
Schedule 1. Indebtedness to Affiliates and Related Parties (Long-Term Loans from Relataed Companies)

Narme of affiiate (1) lgalance &t beginning of period | Balance at end of parfod (2)

NOT APPLICABLE

R s A e T e



PEPSL.COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC.
Schedule J. Guarantees of Securities of Other lssuers(l)

quaranteed by the company for
lwhich this statement is tued

IName of imauing entity of securities [Tie of issue of each class fTotal amount

of securities guaranteed  {guaranteed and
putstanding ()

Amount owned by
peraon for which
statament Is filed

Nature of guarantes (3) ]

NOT APPLICABLE

AT T




PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPFINES, INC.

Schedate K, Capital Stock (1)

Title of leaue (”é’) Nuroer of Shares | o nher of shares issued ] Number of shares | Mumber of shares Enrectors, u-ﬁmr: Othart
aulhorzed and ouUtsARMING at shown | reserved for aptions, | held Ly #t@iates {3) | and employesa .
under related balancs | Wamanis, conversion)
sheat caplion and othar rights
Cemmon Shares 5.000,000.000 3.683,772,279 - 3.508.169,171 20,430,008 71,153,100
Totrls E 000,000,060 3,508, 772,279 - 3,556.18,171 20,430,008 77,153,100

PR s




CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

I, OSCAR 5. REYES, Filipino, of legal age and a resident of Unit 6§ Kasiyahan
Homes, 58 McKinley Road, Forbes Park, Makati City, after having been duly swomn *o in

accordance with law do hereby declare that:

1. | am a nominee identified as indepandent director of PEPSI COLA PRODUCTS

PHILIPPINES INC. (PCPP).

2. | am affiliated with the following companies or organizations:

Company/Organization

Position/
Relationship

Period of
Service

Philippine Long Distance Tel. Co.

Independent Director

2001 -~ present

SMART Communications Inc.

thdependent Director

20086 - present

Sun Life of Canada Philippines, Inc.

Evternal Director

2004 — present

Sun Life Financial Plans Inc.

External Director

2006 - present

Sun Life Prosperity Dollar Abundance Fund,
Inc. '

External Director

2004 — present

Sun Life Prosperity Dollar Advantage F_ur"ad‘
inc. ‘

External Director

2002 — present

independent Director

20049

' Ayala Land, Inc.
Bank of the Philippine Islands

Director

2003 — present

Manila Water Company

Independent Director

2005 - present

Basic Energy Corporation

' Independeni Director

2007 — present

Basic EcoMarket Farms, Inc.

. Non-Executive

Chairman

2009

First Philippine Eleciric Company

Independent Director

2002 — present |

Petrolift Inc.

Director

2007 — present

Mindore Resources Ltd. Director 2002 — present
I Non-Executive :

MRL Gold Philippines Inc. Chairman 2008 - present
Alcorn (Gold Resources Corparation Director 2009

Global Resources for Qutsourced Workers Direct 5 _ B
(GROW) Inc. irector 003 — present
Link Edge Inc.. Chairman 2002 - present
CEO's Inc. Director 2000 — present

| Tower Club Inc. Dirgctor

2003 — present

3. | am not a securities broker-dealer, i.e., | do not hold any office of trust and
responsibility in a broker-dealer firm, which includes, among others, a director,

Page | of 2




officer, principal stockhelder, nominee of the firm to the Philippine Stogk
Exchange, associated person or salesman, and an authorized clerk of the broker
or dealer.

4. 1 possess all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as an
Independent Directar of PCPPI, as provided for in Section 38 of the Securities
Regulation Code and its Implementing Rules and Regulations,

5. | shall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibilities as
independent director under the Securities Regulation Code.

6. | shall inform the corporate secretary of PCPPI of any changes in the
abovementioned information within five days from its oceurrence.

Done, this 22nd day of September 2009 at Makati City.

S e

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me, a notary public in and for the City of
MAKATYhis ___ day of SEP 2 52008, The affiant, whom | identified through the
following competent evidence of identity: Philippine Driver's License No.
N17-65-003836, expiring on 18 April 2010, personally signed the foregoing instrument
before me and avowed under penalty of law to the whole truth of the contents of gaid
instrument.

WITNESS MY HAND AND SEAL on the date and at the place first

abovementioned.

AYTV.LOPE XL w:;;g_:u;c;a_.:..
HR

" e

RIS

Doc. No. R SR CER SN i

Page No. | AR e TR« a1
Book No. : [ D BA5608
Series of 2009. ol No. 26737 5

"Page 2 of 2




EEPUBLIC CF THE PHILIPPINES)
MAKATI CITY ] S. 8.

CERTIFICATION OF INDEFENDENT DIRECTOR
I, RAFAEL M. ALUNAN III, Filiping, of legal age, and
with residence address at # 63 9™ St., New Manila, Quezon
City, under cath, state:

1. I am an Independent Director <¢f the PEPSI COLA
FPRODUCTS FHILIPFIHES, Inco.

2. I am affilizted with the following companies or
organizations:
Company/COrganizaticn Pogition/Relationship | Pariod of Service
Lopez Group Foundation, tne. President/Trustee 2008 - present
PWV Bicfields Corporation President/Director 2008 — present
Firsi Philippine Conservation Ing. Trustee 2008 - present
Bayan Acadermy Trustes 2008 - present
Management Association of the Phils. Governor 2008 - present
(MAF)
_SunLi’e Asset Management Co., Inc. Director . 2007 — present
| Suniife of Canada Fhilippines, Inc. Director 2004 — present
i Sunife Financial Plans, Inc. Director 2004 — present
| Kilosbayan Presidenv/Tiustes 2004 — present
i Rafael Alunan Agri-Developrhent, Inc. Director 1975 — present ,
I {RAADD ;
{Univeraity of 5t. Lz Salle Trustee 2009 - '
3. I possess all of the gualificztions and none of ¢

the disqualifications to =serve as an Independent Director
of the Ceorporaticn/s, as provided for in Section 38 of the
Securities Regulation Code and its Implementing Rules and
Regulations.

4. I shall faithfully and diligently comply with my
dutles and responsibilities z3 Independent Director under
the Securities Regulation Code.

2. I shall irnform the Corporate Secretary of any
changes in the abovementioned information within five days
from its cccurrence.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereuntoe affixed my
signature this SEP 24 2009 ) akati City.

SUBSCRIBED ANLD._ _, oedORN o before me this

SEP 70 0 S™~wAV. M Glant exhibiting to me his/her
Fassport No. UL (I3 Leswiem on 28 December 20065 at
Manils. T s M
Doc. No. DDF 357 o Ne hses
arc. No, H : f 1 ointment No, M-
Page No. _J :;' § NOTARY PUBLIC ;* ’ Nﬂml:'g! Public City of Makati
Book No. _f : 4% ROLLNO. 56619 [ Untit 31 December 2010
Series of 2009, kN 2 %, @ ; Nava & Associates
R AR s 7® Floor, The Pearlbank Cents,
KN < 16 Valero Strest, Salcedo Village, Malkati Gy
W ony ean” PTR No. 1786174; 05-27-09; Makati City
RS 10 N, 7279181 04-07-69; Cavite Chapter

Rolt Mo, 56619



MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL STOCKHOLDERS® MEETING OF

PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC.

Held at The Palms Country Club, Alabang, Muntinlupa City
on 28 October 2008 at 9:30 a.m.
(Stockholders” Meeting No. 2008/2009-001)

Stockholders Present

Cuaker Global Investments BV,

Pepsi-Cola Far East Trade Dev. Corp.

(Guoco Assets (Philippines), Inc.

Hong Way Holdings, Inc.
Orion Land, Inc.

Micky Yong

Varun Berry

Qasim Khan

Jose M. Periguet, Jr.
Rafae] M. Alﬁnan I
Oscar 5. Reyes

Rahul Bhatnagar

Timothy E. Minges

Tsang Cho Tai (Allan Tsang)
James Eng, Ir.

Others

In Person/By Proxy

Varun Berry
(By Proxy)

Varun Berry
(By Proxy)

Micky Yong
(By Proxy)

Micky Yong
(By Proxy)

Micky Yong
(By Proxy)

It Person
In Person
In Person
In Person
In Person
In Person

Varun Berry
(By Proxy)

Varun Berry
(By Proxy)

Micky Yong
(By Proxy)

Micky Yong
(By Proxy)

Total shares present
In Person/By Proxy

No. of Shares

1,089,101,358

100

253,394,962

857,788,626

70,000,000

20,000,001
1

1

88,756,000

2,381,241,056



MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL STOCKHOLDERS® MEETING OF
PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS FHILIPPINES, INC,

Held at The Palms Country Club, Alabang, Muntinlupa City
on 28 October 2008 at 9:30 a.m.
(Stockholders’ Meeting No. 2008/2009-001)

Total shares issued, 3,693,772,279
outstanding and

entitled to vote

Percentage of shares present
In Person/By Proxy 64 46%

CALL TO ORDER

The Chairman of the Board, Mr. Micky Yong, called the meeting to order and presided
over it. The Corporate Secretary, Atty. Ma. Rosario C.Z. Nava, recorded the minutes of
the meeting.

CERTIFICATION OF NOTICE AND OF QUORUM

Atty. Nava certified that notices were sent to all the stockholders of the Corporation and
that stockholders owning or holding 64.46% of the total outstanding capital stock entitled
to vote were present, either in person or by proxy. Thus, there was a quorum for the valid
transaction of business.

APPROVAL, OF THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS ANNUAL
STOCKHOLDERS' MEFTING HELD ON 29 NOVEMBER 2007

There was a motion made to approve the minutes of the previous Annual Stockholders’
Meeting of the Corporation held on 29 November 2007.

The motion was duly seconded, and there being no objection, the minutes of the previous
Annual Stockholders” Meeting of the Corporation held on 29 November 2007 was
unanimously passed and approved.

Stockholders’ Resolution No. 2008/2009 - 001
RESOLVED, that the minutes of the Anmual Stockholders®
Meeting of PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC.
held on 29 November 2007, be, as it is hereby, approved.
PRESIDENT’S REPORT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2007 TO 2008
Mr. Yong, who is concwrently the President-Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation,

then rendered his report to the stockholders on the results of operations for fiscal year
2007 to 2008 and the Corporation’s future plans and initiatives.



MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL STOCKHOLDERS® MEETING OF
PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC.

Held at The Palms Couniry Club, Alabang, Muntittlupa City
on 28 October 2008 at 9:30 am.
{Stockholders’ Meeting No. 2008/2009-001)

AFPROVAL OF AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF 30 JUNE 2008

The Chairman presented for the approval of the stockholders the Corporation’s audited
financial statements as of 30 June 2008, copies of which had been previously sent to the
stockholders.

A motion was made for its approval which was duly seconded, and there being no
objection, the stockholders approved the audited financial statements of the Corporation
as of 30 June 2008.

Stockholders® Resolution No. 2008/2009 - (02

RESOLVED, that the audited financial statements of PEPSI-
COLA PRODUCTS PHILIFPINES, INC. as of 30 June 2008,
be, as it is hereby, approved.

RATIFICATION OF ACTS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND
MANAGEMENT FOR 2007 TO 20408 ‘

The Chairman then discussed with the stockholders the need to ratify the resolutions and
other acts of the Board of Directors and the Management of the Corporation during the
preceding year, as well as the contracts and transactions entered into by the Corporation
for the same peniod.

There was a motion made for its ratification which was duly seconded, and there being no
objection, the stockholders unanimously approved the following resolution:

Stockholders’ Resolution No. 2008/2009 - 003

RESOLVED, that all resolutions and other acts of the Board of
Directors and the Management of PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS
PHILIPPINES, INC. during the preceding vear, as well as all
contracts and transactions entered into by the Corporation for the
same period, be, as they are hereby, approved, confirmed and
ratified.

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Chairman then proceeded to take up the next item in the Agenda which is the election
of the members of the Board of Directors to serve for the fiscal yvear 2008 to 2009.

The Chairman informed the body that earlier, stockholders have cast their ballots in
relation (o the election of nominges to the Board of Direclors as stated in the Final List of
Candidates approved by the Nomination Committee of the Corporation and advised to the



MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL STOCKHOLDERS® MEETING OF
PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC,

Held at The Palms Country Club, Alabang, Muntinlupa City
on 28 October 2008 at 9:30 a.m.
(Stockholders” Meeting No. 2008/2009-001)

stockholders. In accordance with the Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation, the
Corporation shall be electing ten (10) directors, ‘

The Chairman then called on the representative of KPMG Manabat Sanagustin & Co.,
CPAs, the Corporation’s external auditor, to announce and certify the results of the
election.

The representative of KPMG Manabat Sanagustin & Co., CPAs, Ms. Emerald Anne
Bagnes, anmounced and certified that based on the votes cast by the stockholders, the
following individuals, having obtained a majority of the votes cast, have been elected as
directors for fiscal year 2008 to 2009:

Micky Yong
James Eng, Ir.
Timothy E. Minges
Rahu] Bhatoagar
Qazim Khan
Varun Berry
Tsang Cho Tai (Allan Tsang)
Jose M. Periquet, Jr.
Rafael M. Alunan ITI (Independent Tirector)
Oscar 5. Reves (Independent Director)

The Chairman congratulated the newly-elected directors of the Corporation.

APPROVAL OF THE PAYMENT OF ANNUAL DIRECTORS® FEES

The Chairman discussed with the stockholders the need to approve the payment of an
annual director’s foe in the amount of Five Hundred Thousand Pesos (R300,000.00) for
each director.

A motion to approve the same was duly seconded, and thete being no objection, the
stockholders unanimously approved the following resolution:

Stockholders® Resolution No. 2008/2009 - 004
RESOLVED, that the payment of an annual director’s fee in the
amount of Five Hundred Thousand Pesos (P500,000.00) for each
director, be, as it is hereby, approved.

APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Chairman then discussed the need to designate and appoint the external auditors of
the Corporation for the ensuing fiscal vear 2008 to 2009.

A momination was heard from the floor to appoint KPMG Manabat Sanagustin & Co.,
CPAs as the Corporation’s external auditor for 2008 to 2009,



10.

MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL STOCKHOLDERS’ MEETING OF
- PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC.

ll¢ld at The Palms Country Club, Alabang, Muntinlupa City
on 28 October 2008 at 9:30 a.m,
(Stockholders” Meeting No. 2008/2009-001)

Thereafter, a motion was made which was duly seconded to close the nomijnation and
appoint as the KPMG Manabat Sanagustin & Co., CPAs as the Corpotation’s ¢xternal
anditor for 2008 to 2009,
On such motion which was duly made and seconded, and there being no objection, the
stockholders unanimously approved the appointment of KPMG Manabat Sanagustin &
Co., CPAs as the external auditors of the Corporation for the ensuing fiscal year 2008 to
2009.
Stockholders® Resolution No. 2008/2009 - 005

RESOLVED, that KPMG Manabat Sanagustin & Co., CPAs be,

as they are hereby, appointed as external auditors of the

Corporation for the ensuing fiscal year 2008 to 2009.
ADJOURNMENT

The Chairman asked the stockholders if there were any other matters that they would like
to take up at the meeting.

A comment was heard from the floor that all of the items in the Agenda had been taken
up and sufficiently discussed. Hence, a motion was made to adjourn the meeting.

There being no further business to transact, on motion duly made and seconded, and there

being no objection, the meeting was adjourned.

CERTIFIED CORRECT:

MA. ROSARIO C.Z. NAVA
Corporate Secretary .

ATTESTED:

MICKY YONG
Chairmean



